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Vision ›
Our vision for Oakton has always been clear: to be recognised by investors, clients and staff
as a leading Australian ‘blue chip’ technology company, delivering innovative services and
solutions that serve the particular needs of our clients and their customers.

Collaboration… Relationships… Results ›
Companies seeking an IT services provider have many choices. What distinguishes the
exceptional from the norm? The answer lies in relationships. Those intangible bonds that
evolve from collaboration so close, client and provider come to think and act in tandem —
with a common focus on one unchangeable goal: the client's success. It's the way we do
business at Oakton.

Direction ›
For the past year, the information technology consulting and services sector was
characterised by companies shifting their strategies, changing their focus, and reacting to
the myriad of demands in the marketplace. During this time, Oakton has focused on
helping our clients enable the extended enterprise — connected customers, integrated
business partners, empowered employees — which we continue to believe is the right
strategy for the company. While the current business environment remains challenging,
Oakton continues to peer through this haze of marketplace change and remains clear on
one thing: our direction.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REVIEW

Paul Holyoake
Managing Director

Steve Vizard AM
Chairman

Dear fellow investor,
Whenever we’re asked about what business Oakton is
in, it’s easy to fall back on IT industry buzz words
and jargon. But when we talk to our clients, our real
function becomes clear. In the midst of an incredibly
complex and constantly changing business
environment, Oakton makes the tough information
technology stuff simple.

A CHANGING ECONOMY
It’s been quite a year! Economic growth has slowed
for a second year in succession, and there were the
tragic events of 11th September 2001. General
marketplace spending on technology initiatives was
limited as many organisations emphasised cost
saving measures in reaction to the continued
economic slowdown.
Throughout FY02, growth in demand for IT services
remained at historically low levels for much of the
technology consulting sector. The competitive
landscape changed dramatically as several of our
competitors combined with one another or ceased
operations altogether. Businesses became more
cautious about spending, placed projects on hold
and delayed purchase decisions.
Thankfully, in this general climate, companies with
long histories and familiar names like Oakton were
recognised for reliability and a proven business
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model. Oakton’s ability to extend our clients’
enterprises by electronically connecting them to their
customers, suppliers and employees, continues to be
well received.

STRONG PERFORMANCE
IN THE FACE OF CONTINUED ADVERSITY
Through the continued execution of our business
strategy and our focus on partnering with clients,
FY02 brought healthy organic growth to Oakton.
• We saw an increase in the cross-selling of

services to clients as the successful integration of
our earlier acquisitions of Frontline Consulting —
now Oakton Solutions — and Charter Wilson
delivered the results we had worked for.
• We further refined our service offerings to

reflect increasing interest from clients via the
establishment of our specialist practices.
• We successfully completed a sale of the e@gle.i

investigation management system to the
National Prosecuting Authority of South Africa.
In FY02 we executed and delivered in every quarter,
posting another year of record financial results,
without the assistance of any new acquisitions.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REVIEW

Operating Profit

Revenues
Revenues for the year ended 30
June 2002 were $29.7 million,
an increase of 26% over $23.6
million in fiscal year 2000/2001.

#32
2

0

0

2

Operating profit after tax was up by 30% to $6.9
million, well in line with our internal forecasts.
Our previous profit result of $5.3 million for FY01,
saw Oakton improve from position 312 to 278 on the
BRW Top 500 Public Companies list in April 2002.

Oakton’s revenue growth of
186% over the previous three
financial years (1999–2001) saw
us gain 32nd spot in the
Deloitte Technology Fast 50 list
for 2002.

#278
April 2002

TOTAL REVENUE

PROFIT (after tax)
$m

$m
29.7
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growth
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5.3

growth
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12.0
6.8
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2.1

8.0
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2002

Another record year for Oakton, with revenue having
grown 148% since listing due to the successful
integration of key acquisitions, combined with
continued healthy organic growth.

1998

2.4

1999

2000

2001

2002

Growth in profit of 70% since listing reflects the
benefits of Oakton’s strategic expansion and direction.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REVIEW

Financial Performance

THE YEAR IN REVIEW

Our balance sheet at 30 June 2002 was rock solid
with $14.8 million cash on hand and $20.2 million in
current assets, aided by a net operating cash inflow
of $7.6 million during the fiscal year.

During FY02, we continued to position the company
to achieve further growth while maintaining
profitability. Core to that plan were expanded service
offerings, cross-selling of the services of our five
business divisions, and the continued search for
strategic acquisition opportunities.

Success Generates Dividends
Our success has enabled us to pay fully franked
dividends of 6.0¢ per share for FY02, consistent
with our dividend policy.

Service Offerings
Oakton’s service offerings continue to help
companies identify and implement the best ways to
achieve key business objectives such as reducing
costs or developing new strategic business
opportunities by collaborating via the Internet. Each
offering addresses a specific type of business
challenge that companies face today.

Team Effort
Thanks to the hard work and support of every one of
our employees, clients and shareholders, we have
grown from an 88 person company when we listed
in June 2000 to a 151 person company at the end of
FY02.

During the year, we introduced new service
offerings designed to help major companies refine
their IT strategies and initiatives and gain maximum
value from their IT investments. We established
specialist practices to address relevant business
issues and considerations for our clients. They build
and expand upon our deep business and technology
expertise.

Share Performance
Oakton’s share price continues to perform well in
comparison to other ASX listed information
technology companies. During the year Oakton’s
founders sold down some shares to institutional
investors to create more liquidity in the stock.
Oakton continues to be recognised for its
management, performance and expertise.

CASH ON HAND

Although Oakton serves clients in all industry
sectors, we continued to build and develop our
industry domain expertise. We increased our focus
on several vertical markets, including gas and electric
utilities, insurance and health care.

DIVIDENDS PAID
PER ORDINARY SHARE

24%

14.8 $m

growth

76%

6.0

SHAREHOLDERS’
EQUITY
¢

growth

21%

21.8 $m

growth

18.0

11.9

3.4

2001

2002

Oakton continues to have a healthy
cash position.
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2001

2002

Dividends paid or declared per
ordinary share for each year since
listing continues to grow.

2001

2002

Shareholders’ equity has increased
since listing as Oakton’s expansion
generated additional capital and
improved profit.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REVIEW

We were early to market with our innovative
specialist service offerings, and our clients are
already benefiting from the depth and breadth of
knowledge they represent.
Client Relationships
We added business development resources and
focused them on large corporations with an
emphasis on developing long-term transformational
relationships with this client set.
Operations
We continued to generate savings through our
shared services approach. Financially, we
maintained our strong cash position and continued
to be free of debt.
Strategic Acquisitions
Our acquisitions team continued to work hard and
we engaged corporate advisors to provide assistance
with our identification and evaluation activities.
While no acquisitions occurred during FY02, the
groundwork put in has since proven fruitful, with
our agreement to purchase Tier Australia in August
2002.

THE NEXT FRONTIER
Until recently, most IT initiatives addressed core
business processes within the enterprise, such as
finance, accounting, manufacturing and human
resources. Now businesses are looking to enhance
communications across business units and connect
to others outside their four walls.
The goal? To more tightly and securely couple core
business processes with their customers, suppliers
and employees.
What It Will Take
Making this happen requires an inter-dependent
network of applications software and services. Very
few companies have the up-to-date IT strategy,
architecture frameworks and integrated application
solutions needed to make this vision a reality.
Furthermore, most companies clearly do not have
the resources and expert skills to simplify this
complexity. And that’s where Oakton brings its
specialised assets into play.

SHARE
PERFORMANCE
Oakton’s share price
since listing compares
favourably against other
ASX listed information
technology companies.
This is evidence of
support for our strategic
direction and focus on
shareholder value.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REVIEW

BUILDING ON OUR STRENGTHS
Since 1988, Oakton has been a nimble innovator in
applying emerging technologies to business and
creating value for leading companies.
Outstanding Client Work
Our assets shine brightest through our client work.
Whether we’re helping Victoria’s electricity utilities
prepare for full retail contestability; helping one of
the world’s leading energy companies standardise
some of its global processes, data and applications;
assisting a global financial services company access
and integrate systems subsequent to a major
acquisition; or creating the e-procurement strategies
for state government departments — Oakton’s
expertise is at the forefront.
Working together, our strategy, technology, design
and delivery management competencies create
state-of-the-art solutions to simplify the complex
issues that our clients face in their businesses. We
deploy integrated, multi-disciplinary teams of
professionals who use the latest technologies and
research to uncover and deliver value for our clients.
Rock-Solid Partnerships
We have been diligently monitoring the trends in the
marketplace and evaluating the best technologies to
exploit these trends. As we learn more, we are
working to develop the right alliance partners to
enhance our strategy.

RETURN ON EQUITY

15%

growth

Though every client situation is unique, we continue
to strengthen our alliances with leading “best of
breed” technology providers such as BEA Systems,
IBM, Microsoft, Oracle, Sun Microsystems and Vitria
Technology. By integrating proven and emerging
technologies with custom development, we can
efficiently and reliably create customised solutions
for our clients.
We are also developing alliances with new emerging
technology companies, like Mobile Corporation, to
provide important building blocks for our strategy.

LOOKING FORWARD
Businesses primarily focused their IT spending on
cost reduction in FY02. With the prospect of a
recovering economy, we are beginning to see a
healthier balance beyond cost control and a renewed
focus on revenue generation, new product/service
development and internal employee effectiveness.
Since the close of the FY02 financial year, Oakton has
made progress on the acquisition front.
Tier Australia
In August 2002, we announced our intention to
acquire the Australian operations of USA based Tier
Technologies, Inc. A leading consultancy with deep
industry and technology domain expertise, Tier
Australia had itself grown as the result of a number
of acquisitions since 1998, including:

EARNINGS
PER SHARE

36.1 %

28%

9.1

¢

growth

31.5

7.1

2001

2002

Return on shareholders’ funds is an important measure
of financial performance, since it indicates how well
Oakton is using shareholders’ invested money.

6

OAKTON LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2002

2001

2002

Earnings per share is also a key indicator of financial
performance. Growth of 28% is a healthy result.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REVIEW

• the government solutions provider Tangent

A COMPANY FOR TODAY & TOMORROW

• insurance industry specialist Sancha Computer

It has again been a challenging year, but Oakton has
continued to show that it’s the kind of company that
will be relevant in any time.

Services
• call centre specialist SFC Consulting Services
• project management services provider Infact

Consulting
• application management services provider ADC

Consultants
• business consultancy services provider Simsion

Bowles & Associates.
This acquisition should see some 120 people join
Oakton, significantly strengthening our Charter
Wilson and Oakton Computing business divisions,
especially in New South Wales.

Many companies and individuals contributed to our
success in 2001/2002, and we take this opportunity
to thank all of them. This report reflects the
dedication and commitment of our people, many of
whom are also shareholders, on behalf of our clients.
Our enviable results are a tribute to their combined
efforts and determination. We also appreciate our
clients for their business and our investors for their
confidence.

In FY03 we will be working hard to ensure that we
fully integrate Tier Australia into the Oakton group
as successfully as we have done with previous
acquisitions.
Steve Vizard AM
Chairman

MARKET
CAPITALISATION

Paul Holyoake
Managing Director

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

18%

156

74.0 $m

151 people

growth

62.9

88

2001

2002

Market capitalisation continues to reflect our growth.

2000

2001

2002

Employee numbers remained similar from FY01 to FY02
with improved utilisation and an e@gle.i sale
producing Oakton’s healthy revenue and profit growth.
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Key Competitive Advantages
Oakton is better than the competition by being strong
in the key competitive advantages that count
Oakton's primary focus is to understand the
business problems that our clients are facing and
provide the application solutions and services
that enable our clients to solve those problems.
We believe the following elements of our
approach are key to providing effective solutions
to our clients and are key differentiators which
distinguish us from our competitors:
WE HAVE A UNIQUE INTEGRATED
BALANCED SOLUTIONS APPROACH
Oakton's integrated balanced solutions
approach, which has been refined and improved
continuously since 1988, is designed to ensure
the success of our clients' IT investments. It is
structured around an initial set of meetings that
create alignment and momentum across all
business and technology users. We bring our
enterprise architecture frameworks, structured
delivery methodology and multi-disciplinary
skills to bear on all phases of our client work.

WE ARE OUTCOME DRIVEN
We focus on the explicit business outcomes that
our clients can achieve through our solutions,
and we define our success by whether those
outcomes are reached. For more than a decade,
Oakton has helped many leading companies
realise significant value from their technology
investments. Our culture is engineered around
client value. It is collaborative, forthright and
characterised by a determination to do whatever
it takes to deliver results.
WE MEET AND EXCEED OUR COMMITMENTS
Oakton takes full responsibility for the
programmes and projects it manages. We do
whatever it takes to ensure that projects are
delivered successfully at the price and within the
time frame we have promised to our clients. It is
this single-minded focus on performance that
drives repeat business.
WE UNDERSTAND PEOPLE

WE HAVE A CLIENT PARTNERING PHILOSOPHY
The strength of our client relationships is one of
Oakton's greatest assets. Some clients are happy
with a utility relationship where the focus is
primarily on cost reduction, with the goal of
maintaining consistency in the delivery of
services. Other clients seek enhancement
relationships where the focus is on productivity.
However, our long-term clients form a
transformational relationship with Oakton
where the partnership focus is on innovation and
new business, changing the very nature of how
an enterprise competes.
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Technology solutions deliver real business value
only if they are designed with a deep
understanding of the people who have to use the
technology. Through our research, strategy,
design and technology capabilities, we ensure
that our client solutions are effectively adopted
by their intended audiences. We use our
extensive industry and market expertise to
focus on meeting the requirements of the IT
departments and the business units of the
clients we serve.

KEY COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGES

What We Do
OAKTON WORKS WITH CLIENTS TO:
•

Develop strategies for applying information
technology within the extended enterprise

•

Plan, design and build effective application
solutions

•

Integrate those solutions with the client's
existing systems environment to deliver
connected customers, integrated business
partners and empowered employees

OAKTON HELPS CLIENTS LEVERAGE
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY TO
ADDRESS BUSINESS CHALLENGES:
•

Prioritise e-business opportunities

•

Leverage application and infrastructure
investments

•

Digitise business processes and functions to
reduce operational costs

•

Enhance customer and partner relationships

•

Create new revenues through the strategic
application of technology

OAKTON LIMITED
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Balanced Solutions ›
innovative application services
delivering business benefits in partnership
As CEOs, CIOs and line-of-business managers focus
on growing revenue, decreasing costs and improving
operating efficiencies, they are increasingly seeking
the assistance of outside specialists. And in today’s
more enlightened times, clients typically use a
balanced scorecard approach to measure outcomes.
Oakton is an innovative business and technology
consultancy delivering the key parts of the
complex stack of application solutions and
services required to solve today’s business problems
and achieve measurable business benefits.
Since 1988, Oakton has been helping clients harness
the competitive advantages of technology, delivering
specialised applications and services so as to solve a
wide range of real-world, company-specific, business
challenges. We have built up a large repository of
specialist industry and market knowledge.

Oakton has built a unique business structure and
operating model. Our five business divisions deliver
the core products and services our clients depend
on. Our five specialist practices combine the talent,
experience and knowledge of multiple business
divisions to deliver specialist services via common
delivery methodologies. In this way, we tailor
solutions to the needs of our clients.
However, to deliver the innovative solutions clients
seek, we know we must do more. We must go
beyond creating value through the combination of
our specialist insights, broad implementation skills,
speed and reliability, structured delivery approach
and culture. Thus at Oakton, we strive to create
close, long-term transformational partnerships
with our clients where the focus is on innovation
and being a change enabler.

Specialist Practices
Agile teams of specialists able to deliver optimum results and quickly
respond to client and market directions.

Business Divisions
Oakton’s core product and
service offerings are
organised into silos of
excellence.
10
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Products + Services
A comprehensive range of
related products and services
are the starting point for
delivering balanced solutions.

Market Knowledge
Oakton has developed an
extensive understanding of
our clients' markets. This
helps us to effectively
address the market dynamics
and business opportunities
that our clients face.

Tailored Client Solutions
With consistent enterprise architecture frameworks
and structured delivery methodologies in use across
our business divisions and specialist practices,
Oakton can deliver a wide range of solutions tailored
to each client’s business needs.

THE OAKTON GROUP

A Business Ecosystem ›
proven enterprise architecture frameworks
and structured delivery methodology
Oakton believes that today, more so than ever, every
business is a living, breathing, constantly adapting
system of interrelationships and interdependencies —
a business ecosystem. To use technology for
competitive advantage, rather than parity, leading
businesses need to frame their technology decisions
within the larger context of their business model.
Technology investments need to be made within the
business ecosystem context.
As we conceive and architect solutions for our
clients, major business processes, supporting
technology architecture, and people assets are all
scrutinised against business objectives. The client’s IT
strategy, business and technology architectures are
revisited and revised as necessary.

technology problems. These frameworks deliver
innovative solutions to the problems that are the
roadblocks to new business benefits, and are able to
be quickly and easily tailored to match a client’s
unique business ecosystem.
While building and delivering application solutions,
Oakton aligns with the client’s architecture
frameworks using a structured delivery
methodology. This ensures a balance is maintained
between maximising the client’s investment in
existing systems and processes, and efficiently
achieving desired change and innovation.
Oakton's balanced solutions approach to helping our
clients enables us to have a positive effect on the
business ecosystem of our clients.

Oakton brings to our clients proven enterprise
architecture frameworks for a wide range of

Oakton’s People
At Oakton's core are the strategy, creative
and technology professionals able to help
our clients map, understand and improve
their business ecosystem.

Business Divisions
Oakton’s business divisions focus
on the delivery of targeted
application solutions and services.
We assist clients to devise their IT
strategy and enterprise
architecture frameworks. Then we
guarantee compliance as we adapt
existing systems, install and integrate
packaged applications, or build new
applications.

Specialist Practices
Via Oakton’s specialist practices, we deliver the key parts of the
client’s solution stack that demand a level of highly specialised
skills and expertise, together with significant investments in
architecture frameworks and delivery methodologies — skills that
a generalist IT practitioner can never match.

Market Knowledge
Oakton has created and implemented
hundreds of cross-industry solutions
resulting in a growing knowledge base on key
industries and market sectors. We have
strong partnerships with many of the world's
leading technology vendors. Oakton adds
value to client projects by sharing these
key assets with our clients.

Enterprise Architecture Frameworks
& Structured Delivery Methodology
The foundation upon which Oakton builds
client solutions are the enterprise
architecture frameworks that capture our
growing knowledge base, plus the proven
strategic methodologies that govern project
control and delivery. These core foundation
stones ensure clients receive efficient,
smooth and seamless delivery of service
from Oakton.
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BUSINESS DIVISIONS

The Charter Wilson business division helps support
organisations by determining the right mix of
information technology for the best business results.
Charter Wilson is an IT consultancy focused on
understanding the client’s business and becoming
the client’s IT strategy partner. Think of Charter
Wilson as vendor independent architects who design
structures that allow clients to visualise how their
business IT solutions will work.
Services
• Charter Wilson uses a five-stage approach to

design and deliver business IT strategy, business
and technology architecture, selection and
delivery management services.
• As a specialist business and technology

architecture service provider, Charter Wilson
provides the enterprise architecture frameworks,
structured delivery methodologies and multidisciplinary skills to service the key technology
domains of clients.
Major Achievements
• Charter Wilson has developed and successfully

utilised a set of unique enterprise architecture
frameworks that assist clients in applying the
required technology components to a given
business need. Frameworks have been developed
across a range of technology domains in key
market sectors.
Opportunities
• Continue to develop tailored offerings to create

value within a given industry and accelerate
clients’ top- and bottom-line growth through
more effective use of technology.
• Embrace emerging business and technology

trends to further enhance our architecture
offerings and keep our strategies relevant in a
rapidly changing technology environment.
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SUCCESS STORY
Energy Utility
This client is one of the leading energy portfolio
managers in Australia, marketing to electricity and
natural gas customers across Eastern Australia.
The client was faced with a significant IT impact
brought about by industry deregulation. To address
the substantial program of IT activity, the client
recognised that a robust IT planning and architecture
approach would be required to ensure a smooth
transition to the new IT systems environment.
The client asked Charter Wilson to assist in the
development of IT architectures to support divisionlevel and enterprise-wide IT systems planning and
decision-making activities. The project deliverables
then became key inputs to detailed design activities,
and were used to make strategic IT decisions
involving large scale system implementations.
Using the architectures developed as a key input, the
client has begun migrating to a common retail billing
platform, is adopting a common front office
application (CRM) to provide a unified 'face to the
customer' for sales activities, and is rationalising its
data warehouse environments to provide a common
information reporting and analysis platform for both
gas and electricity.
Together, Charter Wilson and the client have devised
and begun implementing an IT strategy that enables
the client to compete in the new deregulated
environment.

BUSINESS DIVISIONS

The Oakton Computing business division has been
delivering innovative, real-world application
solutions to leading corporate and government
organisations since 1988.
Services
• Provides custom application development,

application migration, interactive web solutions
and technical architecture services to corporate
and government clients.
• Builds and supports a wide range of data

warehousing, business intelligence, knowledge
management and content management solutions.
• Delivers a wide range of enterprise application

integration services.
• Provides project management services so as to

achieve coordinated delivery of large-scale
projects
• Provides application management and

outsourcing services, including database
administration and security management services.
Major Achievements
• Strong relationships with prestigious enterprise

clients across many markets and geographies.
• Success in delivering large projects on behalf of

the overseas operations of multi-national clients.
Opportunities
• Compete for business that relies on a proven

ability to efficiently manage the full life cycle of a
client’s applications.

SUCCESS STORY
Energy Company
This client is one of the world's largest petroleum
and petrochemical companies with well-established
operations in Europe, North and South America,
Australasia and Africa. When faced with the
challenge of gaining IT synergy for its global supply
and transportation activities, the client chose to
partner with Oakton Computing.
In the late 1990s, a “Hired Cartage” system — to
manage the contracts, rates and payments of the
client’s transport carriers — was designed and
developed by Oakton Computing. By tracking and
analysing key performance indicators such as the
delivery cost in cents per litre of product, the
application enables the client to optimise its
transport operations. Hired Cartage was deployed
and maintained by Oakton Computing for the client
in Australia, New Zealand, Malaysia and the United
Kingdom.
Hired Cartage was chosen by the client as the basis
for a new "Global Cartage" system to be developed
by Oakton Computing. This solution is already
scheduled for deployment in the USA, France,
Portugal, Turkey, the Netherlands and the countries
already using Hired Cartage. It is also being
considered for use in other countries.
As a result, the client will experience reduced costs,
significantly improved operational flexibility and
greater global business synergies. This allows the
client to better focus on the development of new
strategic business initiatives.

• Making investments in technical knowledge and

intellectual property to stay on the leading edge
of technology and business innovation.
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BUSINESS DIVISIONS

The Oakton Solutions business division provides
clients with complete packaged e-business solutions
for every aspect of their business, including
accounting, sales, marketing, procurement, supply
chain, customer service, manufacturing and human
resources. We integrate business processes into an
Internet enabled, centralised system that streamlines
communications between the client’s customers,
suppliers and employees.
Services
• Providing implementation, integration, support

and management services for packaged
e-business solutions, including Oracle E-Business
Suite applications.
• Specialist expertise in application management,

database administration and system management
of Oracle E-Business Suite applications.
Major Achievements

SUCCESS STORY
Financial Services Company
This client is a global, diversified financial services
company. In Australia, the client is a major provider
of lenders mortgage insurance and one of the largest
non-bank credit card operations.
The client runs a Shared Services Centre out of
Melbourne, servicing its businesses in the Asia Pacific
region including: Australia, China, Hong Kong,
Indonesia, Korea, Malaysia, New Zealand, Philippines,
Singapore, Taiwan and Thailand. Oakton Solutions
takes a lead role in the ongoing maintenance,
support, enhancement and management of the
Oracle E-Business Suite applications the client uses
to run its businesses in the region.
Recent projects have included:
• the rollout of the Oracle Applications Release 11i

upgrade throughout the region

• Oakton Solutions was chosen to assist the

University of Melbourne to implement their new
Oracle E-Business Suite based finance systems.

• the rollout of Oracle Projects for Australasia
• the implementation of Oracle Financial Analyser

for local management reporting, USA reporting
and statutory reporting within each country

Opportunities
• Only 10% of organisations have already installed

a customer relationship management solution.

• the implementation of a consolidated Oracle

Express database for regional reporting
• Offering non-Oracle based tier-two financial and

CRM solutions.

As the client has incorporated acquisitions and
restructured its business, Oakton Solutions has been
active in restructuring the client’s Chart of Accounts,
plus consolidation of General Ledger and business
processes.
Oakton Solutions' Oracle applications skills and
cooperative leadership role with this client’s
personnel contributes significantly to the client's
ability to successfully handle its growth in the
region.
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BUSINESS DIVISIONS

Oakton People is a dynamic, service-orientated
recruitment consultancy the Oakton group launched
as a new business division in August 2000.
Services
• Oakton People offers a full-range of IT

recruitment services for contract and permanent
positions utilising the Internet and in-house
technologies, delivering effective outcomes to
both clients and candidates.
Major Achievements
• Oakton People is a member of the Victorian

Government Panel for the Provision of Temporary
and Permanent Information Systems and
Technology Personnel, due to its specialist
expertise in identifying and providing people with
Oracle, Microsoft and Lotus Notes technology
skills.
Opportunities
• Oakton People will continue to steadily increase

the number of IT professionals it has fulfilling
ongoing contracting assignments as the IT market
improves.
• Oakton People’s specialist expertise in key IT

proficiencies will continue to see it being invited
to join the recruitment panels of prestigious
corporate and government organisations.

AUSTRALIA PACIFIC AIRPORTS MELBOURNE
Australia Pacific Airports Melbourne is responsible
for the management of Tullamarine Airport, the
second largest passenger and freight gateway into
Australia. Over 17 million passengers a year pass
through the airport which has been ranked in
passenger surveys as one of the world's top five
airports.
Oakton People's relationship with Australia Pacific
Airports Melbourne began in 2001, when the
company's Information Systems Department had an
urgent requirement for a system analyst and a
business analyst to join their highly specialised team.
The challenge was to find two experienced
professionals technically proficient in areas such as
data warehousing, business analysis, vendor and
project management. They also needed the
commitment to quality, customer service and
teamwork required to fit the winning culture of
Australia Pacific Airports Melbourne.
Today, Melbourne Airport is benefiting from two staff
members who not only have the technical
capabilities required, but also the effective
communication skills and leadership qualities that
will enable them to grow with the company. Oakton
People will continue to help Australia Pacific Airports
Melbourne to deliver IT service excellence and
achieve enterprise goals.
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BUSINESS DIVISIONS

The Oakton Products Division continues to develop
and market software applications which are able to
be sold as stand-alone solutions and/or integrated
with clients’ existing software systems.
Products
• Our e@gle.i investigation management system

continues to win major industry and government
awards.
• In April 2001 we acquired the full intellectual

rights to SWAMI, a data warehouse design and
performance measurement tool.
Major Achievements
• e@gle.i was chosen to help the specialist

investigative units within the law enforcement
environments of the National Prosecuting
Authority of South Africa in combating organised
crime.
• The successful establishment of a comprehensive

international partner channel to market, sell and
deliver e@gle.i based solutions.
Opportunities
• The Oakton Venture Partners practice can provide

business technology and product development
services to early stage, venture-backed firms on a
fee for service basis, or deliver an equity stake
opportunity for Oakton.
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NATIONAL PROSECUTING AUTHORITY
OF SOUTH AFRICA
In September 1999, the South African government
established the Directorate of Special Operations
(Scorpions), to investigate and prosecute crimes of
national impact. The Scorpions operates along similar
lines to the FBI and Scotland Yard, with a mission to
bring organised and major criminals to court as
rapidly as possible and to prosecute successfully.
An information system was sought to provide an
investigative and prosecutorial solution to assist
Scorpions personnel in meeting their objectives
effectively. The National Prosecuting Authority of
South Africa chose to implement a comprehensive
intelligence system with Oakton’s e@gle.i
investigation management system at the core.
The result is an advanced information management
and workflow system which is enhancing the
productivity of investigators, streamlining
operational activities and enhancing the
effectiveness of investigation supervision and
management. Oakton’s e@gle.i system is helping the
Scorpions to lower its operational costs and achieve
the success rates required to destroy organised crime
in South Africa.

SPECIALIST PRACTICES

Oakton’s Information Management specialist practice
helps clients share best practices, develop superior
decision support systems, combat internal
inefficiencies, exploit existing know-how and learn
more about key stakeholders such as customers,
employees and business partners.

SUCCESS STORY
General Insurance Company
This client, one of Australia's largest general insurers,
embarked on a pursuit to better leverage the
business value in the data being captured in its
separate operational systems.

Services
We plan, design, build, integrate and manage:
• data warehousing
• business intelligence
• enterprise reporting
• content management
• knowledge management solutions

that transform the collective information of clients
into effective strategies that keep pace with their
business needs and the demands of their customers,
employees, suppliers and partners.
Our solutions are not biased — we do not sell
hardware or software. Our tailored client solutions
use a wide-range of top-tier products and
technologies from leading vendors, including:
• Microsoft

• Oracle

• IBM

• Cognos

• Business Objects

• Informatica

The client chose Oakton to take a lead role in
devising a new information management strategy,
and producing the prototype of a fully integrated,
data mart based enterprise management reporting
system. Using a collaborative approach, Oakton
worked with the client in managing the strategy,
architecture, design, construction and training for
the solution, helping to ensure a fast, effective
staged implementation.
Even with only a few stages of the new system
complete, the client is already reaping the business
benefits of a consistent view of current and
historical information being securely in the hands of
more decision makers, analysts and actuaries. The
client is also saving trees, with some 50,000 pages of
previous monthly reports having already been
reduced by 50%.

• Ascential Software

Major Achievements
• Our Information Management consultants have

delivered numerous value-generating solutions
for clients — from enterprise-wide data
warehouse based systems which include the
entire end-to-end process, to focused point
solutions empowering key information workers.
Opportunities
• Industry observer IDC is predicting compound

annual growth rates of 15 percent in business
intelligence solutions and 41 percent in intranets
and portals during the 2002 to 2005 period.
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SPECIALIST PRACTICES

Oakton's Application Integration specialist practice is
helping clients integrate, connect and engineer
disparate systems, applications and environments to
work together to efficiently support the client's
business operations. It’s all about putting in place a
business ecosystem that generates real business
value and real performance breakthroughs by
making applications work in harmony.

SUCCESS STORY

Services

With full retail contestability for household
electricity customers in Victoria to be introduced in
January 2002, the client needed to fully integrate its
back office applications to the electricity marketplace
for each of its participating subsidiaries.

We optimise the client’s business processes by fully
integrating the client’s enterprise applications (e.g.
ERP, CRM), legacy systems, information management
and e-business solutions. We use the latest
middleware, XML and web services technologies to
make disparate application systems work together.
Oakton is not biased by agreements with any of our
software or hardware partners. Our solutions are
always targeted and customised to fit the needs of
our clients. Indeed, that’s how Oakton has come to
have high-level accreditations with the leading EAI
technology vendors, including:
• IBM Business Partner
• Microsoft Certified Partner
• Oracle Certified Solution Partner
• Intel e-Business Solution Provider
• Sun Microsystems iForce Partner
• BEA Star Partner Systems Integrator
• Vitria Systems Integrator and Consulting Partner

Major Achievements
• The Application Integration practice has been well

received by our clients, significantly contributing
to the organic growth of Oakton in FY02.
Opportunities
• Oakton sees the adoption of Web Services

technologies significantly lowing the costs of
application integration, making it possible for
clients to bring forward many much-needed
integration projects.
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Energy Utility
This client is one of Australia's most dynamic energy
companies. Its core business is the distribution of
electricity to more than 500,000 connections in
Victoria, and the management of more than 600,000
gas connections in greater Melbourne.

The client chose Oakton's Application Integration
specialist practice to implement a Vitria
BusinessWare-based gateway solution. Using this EAI
tool, Oakton built an application gateway to
automate the workflow, business logic and data
transformation services required to enable the
client's back office applications to talk to the
electricity marketplace.
The client’s electricity marketplace gateway solution
went live, on time. Oakton is now helping the client
to develop the gateway solution required for full
retail contestability in the Victorian gas market, due
to commence in October 2002.

SPECIALIST PRACTICES

At Oakton, we have built our business and reputation
on years of successful, on-time, on-budget execution
of client projects. Ranging from small,
straightforward engagements, to large, complex
multi-disciplinary initiatives, we have proven time
and again that Oakton’s Project Management
specialist practice has the project management
talent, dedication and depth of experience to satisfy
our clients’ business objectives.
Services
Our Project Management expertise crosses key
industry sectors, delivering the following services:
• Business programme management
• Project planning and management
• Project audit and health checks
• Risk assessment and management
• Project management environment assessment
• Productivity management
• Methodology development and customisation

CAPABILITY MODEL
We invest heavily in the enterprise architecture
frameworks and structured delivery methodologies
required to ensure our leadership position. An example is
our ISO 9001 compliant methodology, which we
have developed specifically for application
development projects.
We overlay specific market
knowledge, technology
expertise and client
experience to deliver an
optimal, customised
approach to engagements.
Our highly trained
programme and project
managers, many of whom
have attained industry
certifications (e.g. Project
Management Institute), complete
the solid foundation of our capability.

SUCCESS STORIES
Oakton’s focus on collaboration and integrated
project management has sparked change and
innovation for many clients.
Energy Utility
To increase earnings in a highly competitive and fast
changing market, Oakton reviewed the client's
project management practices and developed
specific recommendations to establish a common
project management culture across its multiple
business-specific IT organisations.
Financial Services Company
Oakton has delivered many successful programmes
and projects for this client, especially in the areas of
business intelligence, privacy legislation
requirements, acquisition integration and platform
conversion. Oakton was able to align with the client's
own internal quality and project management
processes to deliver sustainable solutions. By
establishing key metrics of success, Oakton made it
easy for the client to track business benefits over
time. It is this ability to adapt to a client's standards
and methodologies, and not forcing a different
methodology on the client, that really reflects
Oakton’s collaborative approach in action.
Oakton’s Project Managers

Client Knowledge

Technology Expertise

Market Knowledge

Enterprise Architecture Frameworks
& Structured Delivery Methodology
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SPECIALIST PRACTICES

Through our Application Management specialist
practice, Oakton manages, develops, enhances and
supports our clients' IT application environments. By
outsourcing their application portfolios to Oakton,
clients are able to manage business systems more
efficiently and reliably, plus improve the performance
of their applications while controlling costs and
improving the bottom line.

BP AUSTRALIA
BP is one of the world's largest petroleum and
petrochemicals companies with a capital investment
in Australia of $8.4 billion and employing some 2000
people across three business streams.

Services
• Application management and operations
• System management services

(UNIX, Windows, Linux)
• Database administration services

(Oracle, MS SQL Server)
• Security services (UNIX, Windows, Linux)

Major Achievements
• Application Management services are providing

Oakton with a solid base of recurring revenue and
an incumbent platform from which to cross-sell
our other services.
Opportunities
• Though the IT infrastructure outsourcing industry

is slowing, the vast majority of application
management work continues to be done in-house
by medium and large organisations. Industry
observers project that the market for application
management services will increase rapidly over
the next several years.
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In 1996, BP Australia was faced with the challenges
of gaining IT synergies from the integration,
enhancement and management of their satellite
applications while deploying new strategic
technology initiatives. BP chose to partner with
Oakton.
As part of a comprehensive application management
outsourcing agreement, Oakton assumed
responsibility for a wide-range of existing BP
applications and databases. Oakton implemented its
application management, database management,
systems management and security management
expertise so as to optimise the business performance
of BP’s existing IT assets.
As a result, each year since 1996 BP Australia has
experienced reduced costs and significantly less
downtime of mission critical business applications.

SPECIALIST PRACTICES

Customer, supplier and employee relationship
management solutions are not a simple technology
implementations. They are actually a complex,
strategic business transformation in disguise. With
that realisation as a starting point, Oakton has a set
of methodologies and architecture frameworks to
help clients plan, design, build and manage a wide
range of relationship management solutions.
Services
Oakton’s seasoned customer relationship
management team is focused on the disciplines of
CRM strategy and execution. They work closely with
clients to deliver all three types of CRM initiatives:
• Operational CRM to manage and synchronise

customer interactions in marketing, sales, and
service.
• Analytical CRM to help clients optimise

information sources for a better understanding of
customer behaviour.
• Collaborative CRM to let clients collaborate with

suppliers, partners and customers to improve
processes and meet customer needs.
Our supplier relationship management team
ensures clients have all of the tools they need to
better evaluate, enable and engage with their
suppliers.
Our employee relationship management team
helps clients to fully leverage their human capital to
sustain a competitive position. We integrate
employee processes and information with business
processes and strategies to achieve optimal business
results.
Major Achievements
• Oakton’s Relationship Management specialist

practice has already helped a number of clients to
get their e-Procurement initiatives back on track
for better business results.
Opportunities
• Only 10% of organisations have already installed

SUCCESS STORIES
Time and again, clients choose Oakton to transform
their mission-critical, customer, supplier and
employee relationship processes. Regardless of the
initiative — customer service or claims processing,
sales force optimisation or new product
development, supplier e-procurement or an
employee portal — Oakton delivers on its reputation
for developing and implementing practical, costjustified solutions fast.
Energy Utility
With gas and electricity industry deregulation
looming, and the need to streamline their retail
systems, this client turned to Oakton for solutions.
Our Relationship Management specialist practice
proceeded to develop a ‘front office’ systems
architecture for the client.
We assisted the client to understand the boundaries
between 'customer facing' activities, such as sales
and service, and back office processes, such as billing
and credit collection. Our architecture was then used
as the basis for key system decision making,
including support for billing and CRM strategies.
The result was a unified front office solution which
allowed the business to provide an automated endto-end customer service process, reduce internal
processing costs and improve their flexibility to
introduce innovative new products and services.
Financial Services Company
Oakton’s Relationship Management specialist
practice helped this global financial services client to
develop an operational CRM and channel
management application architecture. This included
assessing the existing customer channels, processes
and applications used by the organisation, its retail
customers and third-party clients. By bringing a
fresh perspective and deep specialist knowledge to
the problem, we were able to improve processes that
cross business boundaries and identify the highest
ROI opportunities.

a customer relationship management solution.
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Market Knowledge ›
specialised capabilities and solutions
for key market and industry groups
In the beginning, clients typically chose Oakton because of our proficiency with the technologies around which their
business solution would be built. For example, they knew we had successfully designed and built major data warehouse
based business intelligence solutions for clients in other industries. They trusted us to deliver similar results for their
business.
However, in the course of more than a decade of working closely with our clients, Oakton has developed specialised
capabilities and knowledge across many key markets and industry groups. Today, we have specialist offerings to create
value within a given industry and accelerate top- and bottom-line growth. We have created assets, such as business and
technology architecture frameworks, that enable us to quickly implement market-ready solutions for our clients. We are
now leveraging our industry expertise and business process skills to help clients transform fundamental business
operations. Our specialist knowledge of key markets is now providing Oakton with a key competitive advantage.

Resources

Agriculture
Chemicals
Energy
Metals and Mining
Utilities

Since January 2002, all of Victoria's 2.5
million households and businesses have
been free to choose their electricity
supplier. We helped three of the leading
electricity retailers in preparing their
applications to meet the demands of full
competition.

We assisted a leading gas and electricity
retailer to develop and implement their
‘front office’ system architecture.

Clients include:

We are helping a global energy company
standardise some of its global processes,
data and applications to realise substantial
savings.

Financial Services

• BP Australia
• BP International
• South East Water

Banking
Financial Services

We are helping CGU Insurance with the
staged design, build and implementation
of a fully integrated, data mart based,
enterprise management reporting system.
We are assisting a global financial
services client manage their ERP systems,
reducing the cost and improving the
service of their finance department as a
part of a shared services strategy for the
Asia Pacific region.

22

OAKTON LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2002

We helped a leading financial services
client to develop and implement an
operational CRM and channel
management application architecture.

Clients include:
• CGU Insurance

Insurance
Legal Services

MARKET KNOWLEDGE

Communications & High Technology
We are helping Australia Post to
efficiently bring online, billers who sign
up for the POSTbillpay service.
We helped a leading publisher to identify
the IT impact of combining their
management and operations via a shared
services approach. Interim business
system solutions were identified, and a
detailed road map for progressive
migration to a new business systems
environment was created.

Federal, State and
Local Government
Defence
Education
Human Services
Justice

Communications
Electronics and
High Technology

We are assisting a leading
communications provider with numerous
projects involving the provision of a
variety of innovative Internet-based
services to their key wholesale and retail
customers.

Media and
Entertainment

Clients include:
• Australia Post
• SETEC

Government
We helped all Victorian Government
budget sector departments to complete
their e-Procurement strategies and solution
selection. This included ensuring
compliance with the whole of government
business process, data and information
standards.

Clients include:
• Dept of Infrastructure (Vic)
• Dept of Treasury & Finance (Vic)
• NSW Police Service
• Transport Accident Commission

(Vic)
We are assisting the University of
Melbourne to implement their new Oracle
E-Business Suite based finance systems.

• University of Melbourne
• Victoria Police

Products & Services
We are helping Melbourne Airport with
their IT strategy, analysis, technology
selection, project management,
application development, implementation
and support requirements.
We helped The Warehouse, a large-scale
retailer operating in Australia and New
Zealand, to create an IT vision and
strategy to support the changing business
environment in which it operates.

Automotive

Clients include:

Consumer Goods
and Services

• ACI Packaging

Health Services

• Epworth Hospital

Industrial Equipment

• Melbourne Airport

Pharmaceuticals
and Medical Products

• Qantas

Retail and Hospitality

• The Warehouse

Travel and
Transportation
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Accelerating Innovation ›
staying one step ahead in both actions and ideas

Oakton's growth springs from our commitment to
staying one step ahead in both actions and ideas.
Each year we cast our thoughts forward and target
four solution areas we see becoming increasingly
important for our clients. We then look at ways we
can better assist our clients in these areas and
maintain our status as a leading innovation provider
for our clients.
For the coming year, these four areas are:
• Information Management
• Web Services and Application Integration
• Relationship Management
• Mobile Applications

Oakton has a unique edge when it comes to
evaluating new technologies in the form of the
Intel/Microsoft Innovation Centre @ Oakton,
established a year ago with the assistance of key
technology alliance partners Intel Australia,
Microsoft and Dell Computer.
The Innovation Centre provides a unique multivendor proof-of-concept environment that enables
fail-safe testing and validation of complex
applications and architectures. We help our clients to
validate the integration and functionality of
either new products and/or the critically important
fit assessment with existing environments. Using the
Innovation Centre, clients can gain product
integration knowledge within a simulation of their
current and/or planned environment that goes well
beyond theory or vendor specifications. With the
experience gained, implementation decisions are
more informed, adding confidence and greatly
enhancing the value of success.
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INFORMATION MANAGEMENT
Oakton has spent many years partnering with our
Australian and multi-national clients to deliver
solutions that provide rapid access to strategic
information. We believe our specialty in information
management and our experience working on a
variety of projects, from relatively small business
intelligence solutions to massive data warehouse
based enterprise reporting systems, uniquely
positions us as an authority in all aspects of
information management projects.
Our experience has enabled us to develop a
comprehensive set of information management
architecture frameworks to cover data warehouse,
business intelligence, enterprise reporting, content
management and knowledge management
requirements in a number of key markets and
industries. However, we continue to invest in
evaluating the latest tools and technologies, and
researching the latest approaches. We update
existing architecture frameworks, and generate new
ones as required, to ensure we maintain a
competitive advantage in today's rapidly evolving
marketplace.

WEB SERVICES & APPLICATION INTEGRATION
Web Services is a set of emerging technologies that
enable applications and data on different platforms
(i.e. IBM, Microsoft, UNIX) to connect with each
other in real-time, across lines of businesses and
enterprises. Oakton expects many of the architecture
frameworks, tools and technologies currently being
widely used for enterprise application integration
projects will evolve into new Web Services based
replacements.
The Web Services technology consists of standardsbased messages and protocols that are supported by
all of the leading software vendors, including IBM,
Microsoft, Sun, BEA, and Oracle. At the heart of
genuine Web Services are the XML-based
technologies: WSDL, UDDI and SOAP.

ACCELERATING INNOVATION

The major software vendors have integrated their
Web Services products under different banners:
• IBM WebSphere
• Microsoft .NET
• Sun Open Network Environment (Sun ONE).

Oakton has strong partnerships with all of the
leading software vendors named above, and we are
already using their latest technologies to deliver
benefits to our clients using Web Services based
solutions. Oakton will continue to invest in the
research and evaluation of Web Services
technologies so as to be able to help clients in
selecting the right project to pilot, and in assessing
the business opportunities inherent in leveraging
Web Services.

RELATIONSHIP MANAGEMENT
As organisations grow and diversify, the importance
of a global, unified automated approach to
managing customer, supplier and employee
relationships is critical.
The customer community can be the lifeblood of the
client’s revenue stream, the prospects in a new
market, or an internal constituency. Regardless, the
optimisation of the value inherent in the word
“relationship” is paramount.
But even with the world’s best customer relationship
management, sales force automation and/or call
centre solutions in place, in today’s fast moving
business world it can be all to no avail unless
relationship management reaches out to cover the
extended enterprise, with solutions that integrate
business partners and empower employees.
Oakton is continuously evaluating and researching
the latest approaches to automated relationship
management. The benefits of the knowledge gained
through these efforts are transferred to Oakton’s
innovative approach to automated relationship

management, as a philosophy, a strategy and a
business solution. The result is that Oakton’s
Relationship Management specialist practice is able
to continue helping clients realise the full promise of
automated relationship management, from
inception to ongoing execution.

MOBILE APPLICATIONS
Interactive applications, reliable connections and
collaborative environments are being extended to
new devices to both gather real-time data and
distribute smarter information for better and broader
business decision making. PDA's, handhelds, wireless
phones, SMS messaging, GPS technology, RF tagging
and even computer chips embedded in various
products all gather and distribute information in a
more timely manner no matter how remote the
location. These technologies enable improved
applications to provide better, smarter information to
and from previously hard to reach mobile customers,
suppliers and employees.
This improved mobile technology opens up the door
to a new generation of mobile applications. It is now
practical to put in place mobile commerce
applications that enable a mobile phone or PDA to
be used to buy movie tickets, make restaurant
reservations, receive payment reminders, pay bills
and much more.
Oakton, in cooperation with strategic alliance partner
Mobile Corporation, is helping our clients to
develop the IT strategies and architecture
frameworks required for the delivery of successful
mobile commerce applications. We are designing and
building interfaces to the wireless ASP services
required to make our clients' mobile marketing, sales,
payments, fulfilment and customer service
applications a reality.
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Directors ›
Steve Vizard

Paul Holyoake

Tim Norton

AM, LLB, BA, FAICD

BEngMech (Hons), MEngSci,
GradDip CompSci (Melb)

BSurv, MSurvSci (Melb), MBA, FAICD

Chairman

Managing Director
Co-Founder

Steve Vizard practised as a commercial lawyer
for ten years, both in Australia and overseas,
and was a partner in a major city law firm. His
diverse business experience has included
directorships of Film Australia, Telstra,
Australian Children’s Television Foundation,
Victorian Multimedia Task force, Transport
Accident Commission, Melbourne Cricket Club
and numerous other boards.
Steve is Chairman of Victorian Major Events
Company, a company responsible for
identifying, negotiating and securing major
sporting and cultural events, such as the
Australian Formula 1 Grand Prix, Bledisloe Cup
and World Cup Soccer Matches.
Steve is President, Council of Trustees –
National Gallery of Victoria. He has been
awarded Order of Australia and the Melvin
Jones Fellowship Award for community
work which has included Directorships
and Patronage of the Multiple Sclerosis Society,
the Sony Foundation, University of Melbourne,
Alannah & Madeline Foundation, World Vision
and Addiction Research Foundation.
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As a co-founder of Oakton, Paul
Holyoake delivered the drive and
business pragmatism to grow a
start up company into the
profitable enterprise that it is
today.
Paul has a proven ability to
detect the direction of
technology and to align the
business focus accordingly. He
has also been successful in
recruiting and retaining some of
the best people in the industry.
Paul has been involved
in the information technology
sector since 1980, and worked
for a robotics company and CRA
(now Rio Tinto) prior to cofounding Oakton in 1988.

Executive Director
Co-Founder

Prior to co-founding Oakton, Tim
Norton worked in the public
sector and CRA (now Rio Tinto)
using his technical expertise in
satellite navigation,
computerised mapping and
computer aided engineering
design. Many of the software
systems Tim developed in a
research capacity are still in use
today. After completing an MBA
he successfully blended his
technical and business skills in a
career as an Information
Technology consultant.
Since co-founding Oakton
in 1988, Tim has consulted
to a variety of large
organisations, where his intellect
and flair have contributed to
outstanding results. He now
focuses full time on Oakton
management issues relating to
strategic business expansion.

DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT

Neil Wilson

John Quinn

Gordon Hughes

BBus (Accounting) (MIS), CPA, MACS

BComputing (Canberra)

LLB (Hons), LLM, PhD

Executive Director

Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

As founder and Managing Director
of Charter Wilson, Neil Wilson
created the vision for the
organisation and has worked with
key people in the team since 1996
to establish a highly regarded
strategy and architecture services
business.

John Quinn has more than 20
years IT industry experience and a
history which demonstrates an
exceptional pattern of achievement
and career advancement. During
the past 10 years his roles have
had a strong, sales management
and strategic marketing, focus. In
addition to an excellent knowledge
of the Australia and New Zealand
markets, John has gained extensive
experience
in all the major Asian markets.

Gordon Hughes is a partner at Blake
Dawson Waldron practising
principally in the area of IT law, data
protection law, electronic commerce
and intellectual property. He has
acted for Oakton for a number of
years.

Prior to establishing Charter
Wilson, Neil held a number of
senior IT positions with Coles Myer.
Neil continues to manage the
Charter Wilson business and
participate in strategic consulting
assignments. Neil has also taken
on group wide roles within Oakton
to contribute to the development
and execution of the organisation’s
strategic direction.

John joined Oakton in 1998 to
establish the NSW office. Recently
he has focused on driving sales of
e@gle.i through direct and
indirect channels into Asia, Europe
and North America.

Gordon is the co-author of a leading
text on IT law, Computer Contracts:
Principles and Precedents, and is the
author of another text, Data
Protection in Australia.
Gordon is a former president of the
Victorian Society for Computers and
the Law, and an honourary life
member of that society. He is also
chairman of the LAWASIA Computers
and Technology Group and the
Privacy Committee of the Law
Council of Australia.
Gordon is a former president of the
Law Council of Australia and is
currently president of LAWASIA.
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Management ›
Jane Pearce

Lloyd Borrett

Michael Miers

Company Secretary

National Marketing Manager

BEc, FCPA, ASIA

Chief Financial Officer

Jane Pearce has over fifteen years
of experience, specialising
in financial and administrative
management.
Jane is a long-standing employee
with Oakton, having joined the
company in July 1989.
Before joining Oakton, Jane
provided administration and
financial consultancy services to a
range of businesses and has
experience spanning
the public sector, manufacturing
companies and consultancies.
Jane was appointed as company
secretary in March 2000.

As National Marketing Manager,
Lloyd Borrett has overall
responsibility for Oakton’s
strategic market development
activities, including partner
alliances and relationships. He
has a key role in identifying new
market opportunities.
Lloyd has more than twenty five
years experience within the IT
sector. Prior to joining Oakton in
March 2000, Lloyd held positions
at: Expert Software Services,
Protech Australia, MicroHelp
Computers & Communications,
HiSoft Computers and BHP
Information Technology.
Lloyd is the founder and
inaugural president of the
Melbourne PC User Group,
Australia’s largest PC user group
and the second largest in the
world, with more than 11,000
members.
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Michael Miers has over twenty five
years experience in the financial
services industry, undertaking
senior finance roles in the retail
banking, merchant banking and
stock broking sectors.
Most recently Michael was the
Head of Finance & Planning at
Bank of Melbourne, pre and post
the merger with Westpac. He was
responsible for the finance
integration with Westpac and for
the establishment of the
Management Information Service
at the Bank of Melbourne.
Michael joined the Oakton group
in January 2001. He is responsible
for the Shared Services division of
the company. His primary focus is
the ongoing development of the
Oakton group’s fully-integrated
management information system.

DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT

Tom Slomovic

Bruce Minahan

Peter Thomson

Dip Marketing, Cert EDP

BSurv (Melb), MACS

General Manager,
Oakton People

General Manager,

General Manager,
Group Sales & Marketing

Tom Slomovic brings some 28
years of IT experience to Oakton, of
which 12 years have been in IT
personnel consulting and agency
management. As General Manager
of Oakton People, Tom’s main
focus is to resource staff for the
Oakton group as well as service the
recruitment needs of Oakton's
clients, plus other government and
commercial organisations.

Bruce Minahan has worked for 19
years in the development and
implementation of application
solutions to solve business
problems. He is a long standing
member of the Australian
Computer Society.

Tom has extensive experience in
the sales of IT hardware, software
and personnel services. Prior to
joining Oakton in August 2000,
Tom worked with Drake
International, Big Sky and
International Contracting Services.
In these organisations, he held
senior-level divisional and
management positions supporting
the recruitment and placement of
both contractors and permanent
staff.

Oakton Computing

Bruce has extensive experience in
services delivery and marketing
through both his work with
Oakton since June 1997, plus
previous engagements with
Andersen Consulting, Hitachi Data
Systems, Fujitsu/ICL and the
Victorian State Government.
Through this period, Bruce has
developed a strong focus on
delivering business value through
the well managed application of
information technology.

As General Manager, Group Sales
and Marketing, Peter Thomson is
responsible for driving Oakton’s
sales growth across current and
emerging markets. Peter has been
in the IT industry for 22 years,
having held a variety of senior
management roles.
Prior to joining Oakton in August
2002, Peter spent five years with
DMR Consulting where he had
responsibility for top and bottom
lines as the State Sales Manager
for Victoria. Before that, Peter had
a highly successful business
development career, holding senior
roles with well known IT vendors
including Informix, Silicon Graphics
(SGI) and Data General.
Peter brings substantial practical
understanding to the senior sales
and marketing role, having spent
the first nine years of his career in
technical, consulting and delivery
management roles.
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Sound and Effective Corporate Governance
Sound and effective corporate governance is a
priority for Oakton Limited — indeed, we consider it
essential to the long-term success of the Company.
Our corporate governance policies are designed to
strengthen the ability of the Board of Directors to
effectively supervise management and enhance
long-term shareholder value.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

Oakton gives high priority to its internal control
environment, which includes strong management
supervision, external audit and the thorough
enforcement of business conduct guidelines. This
environment, in turn, is based on corporate
governance structures and procedures which fully
comply with the latest guidelines for corporate
governance adopted by the Australian Stock
Exchange.

• the maximum number of Directors shall be

Set out below, in accordance with ASX Listing Rule
4.10.3, are the main corporate governance practices
operating in Oakton Limited as at year end.

• the number of Directors necessary to constitute a

MANDATE AND DUTIES OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
A strong, effective Board of Directors ('the Board')
plays a crucial role in protecting the interests of
shareholders and maximising the value they receive
from their investment in Oakton. The Board is
responsible for Oakton Limited and its controlled
entities, and its mandate includes:
• setting and monitoring of objectives, goals and

strategic direction for management with a view
to maximising shareholder wealth;
• accepting an annual budget and the monitoring

of financial performance;
• ensuring adequate internal controls exist and are

appropriately monitored for compliance;
• ensuring significant business risks are identified

and appropriately managed;
• selecting, appointing and reviewing the

performance of the Chief Executive Officer;
• selecting and appointing new Directors; and
• maintaining the highest business standards and

ethical behaviour.
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At the date of this statement, the Board comprises of
two Non-Executive Directors and four Executive
Directors. Details on the Directors are contained in
the Directors' Report.
Oakton Limited's Constitution provides that:

twelve;
• at least one-third of the Directors must retire

from office at the Annual General Meeting each
year. Such retiring Directors are available for reelection;
• Directors appointed to fill casual vacancies must

submit to election at the next Annual General
meeting; and

quorum is two Directors.
The Directors should bring characteristics to the
Board, which will provide a mix of qualifications,
skills and experience, both nationally and
internationally. When a vacancy exists or whenever it
is considered that the Board would benefit from the
services of a new Director with particular skills, the
Board selects one or more candidates with the
appropriate expertise and experience.
Having regard to the size of the Board, it has not
been considered necessary to appoint a nomination
committee

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF APPOINTMENT AND
RETIREMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The terms and conditions of the appointment and
retirement of any new Non-Executive Directors will
be set out in a letter of appointment which
prescribes:
• remuneration;
• the term of appointment, subject to shareholder

approval;
• the expectation of the Board in relation to

attending and preparing for all Board Meetings;

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

• procedures for dealing with conflicts of interest;

and
• the availability of independent professional

advice.
Non-Executive Directors are remunerated for their
services from the maximum aggregated amount
approved by shareholders for that purpose. Their
compensation is reviewed by the Board.
It is the practice of the Directors that when a
potential conflict of interest may arise, the Director
concerned does not receive a copy of the relevant
Board paper and withdraws from the Board Meeting
whilst such a matter is being considered.
The Board has a policy of enabling Directors to seek
independent professional advice at the Group's
expense, subject to estimated costs being approved
by the Chairman in advance as being reasonable.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Board has established an Audit Committee. The
primary objective of the Audit Committee is to assist
the Board in fulfilling the Board's responsibilities
relating to accounting and reporting practices of the
Company and its controlled entities. The main
functions of the Audit Committee are:
• to act as a committee of the Board of Directors in

discharging the Board's responsibilities as they
relate to financial reporting policies and practices,
accounting policies and management and internal
controls;
• to provide through regular meetings a forum for

communication between the Board, senior
financial management and external auditors; and
• to enhance the credibility and objectivity of the

Company's financial reports.
The responsibilities of the Audit Committee include
monitoring compliance with requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001, Stock Exchange Listing Rules,
Australian Securities Commission, taxation legislation
and other laws as they apply to the subject matter of
the Audit Committee's functions (for example
internal accounting, external auditing, financial
reporting and taxation compliance).
The members of the Audit Committee are Tim Norton
and Gordon Hughes.

The Audit Committee is able to obtain independent
professional advice as required and also has access
at all times to the executive directors and other
management personnel.
The external audit of the Company is conducted by
Pitcher Partners. The terms and scope of the
engagement are regularly reviewed and were
affirmed this year. The audit engagement partner
from Pitcher Partners has been rotated for this year’s
audit.

APPROACH TO CORPORATE COMPLIANCE AND
RISK IDENTIFICATION AND MANAGEMENT
In relation to identifying areas of significant business
risk and putting in place arrangements to manage
such risk the Board relies on the advice and expertise
of senior management acting in consultation with
the Company's external advisers. Where appropriate
the Board obtains advice directly from external
advisers.
The Board has not considered it appropriate to
appoint a separate Corporate Governance Committee
and responsibility for developing and monitoring
corporate governance policies and practices in areas
outside the scope of the functions of the Audit
Committee is retained and exercised directly at Board
level.

CONTINUOUS DISCLOSURE
The Board has established compliance procedures to
ensure that the Company complies with its
continuous disclosure obligations under the ASX
Listing Rules and the continuous disclosure
provisions of the Corporations Act 2001.
The Company's internet website at
www.oakton.com.au is regularly updated and
provides details of recent material announcements
by the Company to the stock exchange, annual and
half-yearly reports, and general information on the
Company and its businesses.

ETHICAL STANDARDS
The Group's policy is that all Directors, managers and
employees are expected to act with the utmost
integrity and objectivity, striving at all times to
enhance the reputation and performance of the
consolidated entity.
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Directors’ Report
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2002
The Directors present their report together with the
financial report of Oakton Limited ('the Company')
for the year ended 30 June 2002 and the
Independent Auditors’ Report thereon.

OPERATING RESULTS
The consolidated profit of the economic entity for
the financial year after providing for income tax
amounted to $6,935,383.
2002
$’000

2001
$’000

6,935

5,345

2002
cents

2001
cents

Basic earnings per share

9.1¢

7.1¢

Diluted earnings per share

9.0¢

7.0¢

DIRECTORS
The following persons held office as Directors of
Oakton Limited during the financial year and up to
the date of this report:
Executive Directors
Paul Holyoake (Managing Director)
Tim Norton
John Quinn
Neil Wilson
Non-Executive Directors
Steve Vizard (Chairman)
Gordon Hughes
Mark Elliott (resigned 20 August 2002)

Earnings per share

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the economic entity during
the course of the financial year consisted of:

Results for the year were another record for the
company with Operating profit after tax growing by
over 29% to $6.935 million, on operating revenues
which increased 26% to $29.727 million.

• Business IT strategy, business and technology

architecture and selection services
• Custom application development and technical

architecture services
• Packaged e-business ERP, CRM and procurement

solutions and services
• Information management, data warehousing and

business intelligence services
• Application integration services
• Project and delivery management services
• Application management services
• Development, sales and marketing of specialised

products and tools
• Specialist IT recruitment services

No significant changes in the nature of these
activities occurred during the year.
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Operating profit after income tax
attributable to members of
Oakton Limited
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Earnings continued to be driven by the successful
integration of earlier acquisitions and the crossselling of services across business divisions, together
with sound cost control and efficiencies brought on
by a shared services approach and technology
developments.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIVIDENDS PAID OR RECOMMENDED

ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

The dividends paid or declared by the parent entity
since the start of the financial year are as follows:

The economic entity's operations are not regulated
by any significant environmental regulation under
laws of the Commonwealth or of a State or Territory.

2002
$’000
DIVIDENDS PAID

Subsequent to balance dated, Oakton Limited has
entered a contract to acquire certain business assets
of the the Australian operations of Tier Technologies
Inc. Further details are included in note 27.

A fully franked (C class - 30%) dividend of
3 cents per share, totalling $2,264,109
was paid on 30 November 2001. This
dividend was not detailed in the previous
Directors’ Report.

2,264

A fully franked (C class - 30%) dividend of
3 cents per share, totalling $2,264,109
was paid on 29 April 2002. This dividend
was not detailed in the previous
Directors’ Report.

2,264

The total dividends paid in respect of
the year ended 30 June 2002

4,528

DIVIDENDS DECLARED AND NOT PAID
After the end of the financial year, the Directors
declared a fully franked (C class - 30%)
dividend of 3 cents per share, to be paid on
28 October 2002. This dividend is not provided
for in the financial report.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE

Apart from the matter noted, no matters or
circumstances have arisen since the end of the
financial year which significantly affected or may
significantly affect the operations of the economic
entity, the results of those operations, or the state of
affairs of the economic entity in future financial
years.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND
EXPECTED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
During the year the company has continued to use
funds raised by the Initial Public Offering of Shares
in accordance with the Prospectus dated 12 April
2000.

2,299

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES
IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS
There were no significant changes in the economic
entity’s state of affairs during the financial year.

Information as to likely developments in the
operations of the consolidated entity and the
expected results of those operations in future
financial years has not been included in this report
because the directors believe on reasonable grounds
that to include such information would be likely to
compromise commercial opportunities under
consideration by the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS
Name:
Age:
Positions:
Experience:

Name:
Age:
Positions:
Experience:

Name:
Age:
Positions:
Experience:

Name:
Age:
Positions:
Experience:

Name:
Age:
Position:
Experience:

Name:
Age:
Positions:
Experience:
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Steve Vizard — AM, LLB, BA, FAICD
46
Chairman, Member of the Remuneration Committee
Director and Chairman since April 2000
Steve Vizard practised as a commercial lawyer both in Australia and overseas, and was a partner in a major city law
firm. Steve has held numerous senior positions in the media, technology and communications sector including
directorships of Telstra, Victorian Multimedia Taskforce, Film Australia and the UK media giant Granada's interests in
Australia.
Paul Holyoake — BEngMech (Hons), MEngSci, Grad Dip CompSci (Melb)
43
Managing Director, Co-Founder, Member of the Remuneration Committee
Director since 1988
Paul Holyoake has been involved in the information technology sector since 1980, and worked for a robotics company
and CRA (now Rio Tinto) prior to co-founding Oakton.
Tim Norton — BSurv, MSurvSci (Melb), MBA, FAICD
44
Executive Director, Co-Founder, Member of the Audit Committee
Director since 1988
Prior to co-founding Oakton in 1988, Tim Norton worked in the public sector and CRA (now Rio Tinto) using his
technical expertise in satellite navigation, computerised mapping and computer aided engineering design. After
completing an MBA he successfully blended his technical and business skills in a career as an Information Technology
consultant.
Neil Wilson — BBus (Accounting) (MIS)
41
Executive Director, Managing Director Charter Wilson
Director since October 2000
Neil Wilson was founder of the Charter Wilson business in 1996. Prior to establishing Charter Wilson, Neil held a
number of senior IT positions with Coles Myer. He continues to manage Charter Wilson and Associates Pty Ltd and
participate in strategic consulting assignments.
John Quinn — BComputing (Canberra)
43
Executive Director
Director since April 2000
John Quinn has almost 20 years IT industry experience. He has established successful computer businesses in Australia
and New Zealand, plus gained extensive experience in all the major Asian markets.
Gordon Hughes — LLB (Hons), LLM, PhD
52
Non-Executive Director, Member of the Audit Committee
Director since April 2000
Gordon Hughes is a partner at Blake Dawson Waldron practising principally in the area of information technology law,
data protection law, electronic commerce and intellectual property.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
The table below shows the interests of each Director in the share capital of the company as at the date of this report:
Ordinary Shares

Options

Shares Directly Held

Shares Indirectly/
Beneficially Held

Options
Directly Held

1,400,000
5,003,941
9,941,000
680,000
4,437,063
Nil

701,800
25,894,059
25,000
697,308
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
780,000
Nil
100,000

Steve Vizard
Paul Holyoake
Tim Norton
Neil Wilson
John Quinn
Gordon Hughes

Other than the contracts identified in Note 28, the Directors were not party to any contracts with the parent entity or
any of its controlled entities.

DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS’ EMOLUMENTS
The company's policy for determining the nature and amount of emoluments of board members and senior executives
of the company is as follows:
The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board on remuneration policies and
packages applicable to the Board members and senior executives of the Company. The broad remuneration policy is to
ensure the remuneration package properly reflects the person's duties and responsibilities; and that remuneration is
competitive in attracting, retaining and motivating people of the highest quality.

The executive directors are employed under a contract detailing their remuneration, service period and noncompetition clauses.
The emoluments of each Director and Officer are as follows:

Director
Parent Entity
Steve Vizard
Paul Holyoake
Tim Norton
Neil Wilson
John Quinn
Gordon Hughes
Mark Elliott
Officer
Jane Pearce

Superannuation
Salary Contributions (i)
$
$

Non-Cash
Benefits (ii)
$

Total
$

27,778
181,445
198,862
242,630
215,194
23,148
25,000

2,222
15,909
15,909
32,370
17,215
1,852
-

95,989
56,493
4,502
56,963
-

30,000
293,343
271,264
279,502
289,372
25,000
25,000

60,093

4,807

-

64,900

Note:
(i) Superannuation payments represent payments in respect of the superannuation guarantee levy or additional salary sacrificed
amounts paid.
(ii) Non-cash benefits are stated at cost to the company including Fringe Benefits Tax where applicable which may be more than the
actual value received by the director or executive officer being predominantly motor vehicles and related motor vehicle running costs.
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MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS
During the financial year, 14 meetings of directors (including committees) were held.
Attendances were:
Directors’ Meetings
Director

Steve Vizard
Paul Holyoake
Tim Norton
Neil Wilson
John Quinn
Gordon Hughes
Mark Elliott

Remuneration Committee Meetings

No. of Meetings
Attended

No. Eligible to
Attend

No. of Meetings
Attended

No. Eligible to
Attend

No. of Meetings
Attended

No. Eligible to
Attend

10
10
10
9
9
9
9

10
10
10
10
10
10
10

0
0
2
0
0
2
1

0
0
2
0
0
2
1

2
2
0
0
0
0
0

2
2
0
0
0
0
0

INDEMNIFYING DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

PROCEEDINGS ON BEHALF OF THE COMPANY

The company has during and since the end of the
financial year, in respect of any person who has, is or
has been an officer of the company or a related body
corporate:

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring
proceedings on behalf of the company or intervene
in any proceedings to which the company is a party
for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of
the company for all or any part of those
proceedings.

paid a premium in respect of Directors and Officer
Liability insurance which indemnifies the Directors,
Officers and the Company of any claims made
against the Directors, Officers of the Company and
the Company, subject to conditions contained in the
insurance policy. The limit of liability insured is $5
million and the policy covers all Directors and
Officers. The premium of $8,500 was paid during
the financial year and a further amount of $16,900
was paid after balance date.

Further disclosure required under section 300(9) of
the Corporations Act 2001 is prohibited under the
terms of the contract.

INDEMNIFYING AUDITORS
The company has not, during or since the financial
year, in respect of any person who is an auditor of
the company or a related body corporate:
• indemnified or made any relevant agreement for

indemnifying against a liability, including costs
and expenses in successfully defending legal
proceedings; or
• paid or agreed to pay a premium in respect of a

contract insuring against a liability for the costs
or expenses to defend legal proceedings.
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The company was not a party to any such
proceedings during the year.

ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS
The company is an entity to which ASIC Class Order
98/100 applies and accordingly, amounts in the
financial statements and Directors’ Report have been
rounded to the nearest thousand dollars.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

OPTIONS
Options that were granted over unissued shares during or since the end of the financial year by the economic entity
and the balance as at the date of this report are as follows:*
Issue
Date

Expiry
Date

Exercise
Price $

Opening
30/06/2001

Issued
Number

Exercised

Lapsed

01/07/2000
01/07/2000
13/07/2000
01/09/2000
01/09/2000
01/09/2000
01/09/2000
01/09/2000
01/09/2000
01/09/2000
01/11/2000
01/11/2000
01/09/2000
01/12/2000
01/01/2001
01/02/2001
01/02/2001
01/02/2001
01/02/2001
01/02/2001
01/02/2001
01/04/2001
01/04/2001
01/04/2001
01/04/2001
01/04/2001
01/04/2001
01/04/2001
01/10/2001
01/10/2001
01/08/2001
01/07/2001
01/07/2001
01/07/2001
10/10/2001
10/10/2001
10/10/2001

29/05/2005
29/05/2010
13/07/2005
01/09/2005
01/09/2005
01/09/2005
01/09/2005
01/09/2005
01/09/2005
01/09/2005
01/11/2005
01/11/2005
01/09/2005
01/09/2005
01/01/2006
01/02/2006
01/02/2006
01/02/2006
01/02/2006
01/02/2006
01/02/2006
01/04/2006
01/04/2006
01/04/2006
01/04/2006
01/04/2006
01/04/2006
01/04/2006
01/10/2006
01/10/2006
01/08/2006
01/07/2006
01/07/2006
01/07/2006
12/10/2003
12/10/2003
10/10/2003

1.00
0.20
1.00
1.00
1.02
1.07
1.11
1.15
1.25
1.31
1.20
1.02
1.30
1.26
1.25
1.25
1.02
1.22
1.13
1.05
1.07
1.15
1.20
1.22
1.18
1.16
1.13
1.00
0.87
0.91
0.84
0.91
1.00
0.95
1.00
0.20
0.20

1,517,000
1,250,000
450,000
5,000
10,000
15,000
5,000
10,000
15,000
20,000
82,000
400,000
35,000
30,000
30,000
5,000
40,000
15,000
5,000
5,000
10,000
5,000
25,000
10,000
10,000
5,000
5,000
-

54,000
5,000
10,000
15,000
20,000
15,000
10,000
100,000
750,000
750,000

(1,150,000)
(750,000)
-

(105,000)
(5,000)
(5,000)
(10,000)
(9,000)
(10,000)
(15,000)
(15,000)
(5,000)
(5,000)
(5,000)
(5,000)
(5,000)
-

1,412,000
100,000
450,000
5,000
15,000
5,000
10,000
15,000
10,000
73,000
390,000
35,000
15,000
15,000
40,000
10,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
20,000
10,000
10,000
5,000
5,000
54,000
5,000
10,000
10,000
20,000
15,000
10,000
100,000
-**
750,000**

4,014,000

1,729,000

(1,900,000)

(199,000)

3,644,000

Total:

Closing
30/06/2002
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OPTIONS (continued)
All options issued during the year (except those marked **) were in relation to the Employee Share Option Plan. The
plan is open to all employees and options are issued as recommended by the remuneration committee. There is a
limitation on the exercise of options issued under the Employee Share Option Plan. The options may be exercised at a
maximum of one quarter in each year commencing 12 months after the date of issue or at a maximum of one third in
each year commencing 12 months after the date of issue. Of the options issued under the Employee Share Option
Plan, 100,000 were issued to Neil Wilson, a director, with an exercise price of $1.00 and an expiry date of October
2006.
Other options issued during the year (marked **) were issued pursuant to the contract to acquire Charter Wilson and
Associates Pty Ltd. These options had an expiry date of 10 October 2003 and an issue price of 20 cents
(Refer also to note 21).

Dated at Melbourne on 22 August 2002.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

PAUL HOLYOAKE
Managing Director

TIM NORTON
Executive Director
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Statement of Financial Performance
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2002
Economic Entity

Parent Entity

Note

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

2

29,727

23,575

14,145

13,375

(839)
(318)
(16,687)
(361)
(553)
(645)
(231)

(626)
(33)
(13,580)
(287)
(478)
(241)

(640)
(310)
(7,964)
(182)
(90)
(133)

(410)
(29)
(6,860)
(151)
(67)
(132)

(19,634)
(1)

(15,245)
(5)

(9,319)
(1)

(7,649)
(4)

10,092

8,325

4,825

5,722

(3,157)

(2,980)

(1,456)

(1,964)

Net profit from ordinary activities
after income tax

6,935

5,345

3,369

3,758

Net profit from ordinary activities
after income tax expense attributable
to the members of the parent entity

6,935

5,345

3,369

3,758

Total changes in equity other than those resulting
from transactions with owners as owners

6,935

5,345

3,369

3,758

Revenue from ordinary activities
Expenses from ordinary activities,
excluding borrowing costs expense
Administration
Business development
Human resources
Occupancy
Other
Royalty
Technology

Borrowing costs expense

3

3

Profit from ordinary activities
before income tax expense
Income tax expense
relating to ordinary activities

4

Basic earnings per share (cents per share)

7

9.1c

7.1c

Diluted earnings per share (cents per share)

7

9.0c

7.0c

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
AS AT 30 JUNE 2002
Economic Entity

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash assets
Receivables
Other

Note

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

8
9
10

14,750
5,307
131

11,910
4,716
96

10,856
2,546
106

10,020
1,793
64

20,188

16,722

13,508

11,877

634
6,130
366

606
6,505
297

5,100
244
80
222

2,456
5,100
217
100
147

7,130

7,408

5,646

8,020

27,318

24,130

19,154

19,897

3,410
13
1,078
973
-

2,877
17
1,360
806
21

1,685
13
252
513
-

1,630
17
351
437
-

5,474

5,081

2,463

2,435

71

1,000
13
-

71

1,000
13
-

71

1,013

71

1,013

5,545

6,094

2,534

3,448

21,773

18,036

16,620

16,449

16,535
5,238

15,205
2,831

16,535
85

15,205
1,244

21,773

18,036

16,620

16,449

Total Current Assets
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Receivables
Other financial assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets

9
11
13
14
15

Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables
Interest-bearing liabilities
Current tax liabilities
Provisions
Other

16
17
18
19
20

Total Current Liabilities
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables
Interest-bearing liabilities
Provisions

16
17
19

Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Contributed equity
Retained profits

21
22

TOTAL EQUITY

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Parent Entity

Statement of Cash Flows
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2002
Economic Entity

Parent Entity

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

31,506
(20,883)
465
(3,498)

22,779
(15,684)
695
(3,111)

14,334
(10,415)
415
(1,630)

13,564
(8,225)
618
(2,476)

26(b)

7,590

4,679

2,704

3,481

26(c)

(240)
(1)
(293)
-

11
(270)
(3,068)
(1,339)
(100)

(107)
(1)
-

(114)
(3,088)
(100)

(534)

(4,766)

(108)

(3,302)

Proceeds from share issue
Loans (to)/from subsidiaries
Interest paid
Repayment of hire purchase
Dividends paid

330
(1)
(17)
(4,528)

(17)
(5)
(16)
(4,801)

330
2,456
(1)
(17)
(4,528)

(17)
(1,900)
(4)
(16)
(4,470)

Net cash used in financing activities

(4,216)

(4,839)

(1,760)

(6,407)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held
Cash at beginning of year

2,840
11,910

(4,926)
16,836

836
10,020

(6,228)
16,248

14,750

11,910

10,856

10,020

Note
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest received
Income tax paid
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Payment for property, plant and equipment
Payment for equity investments (net of cash acquired)
Payment for businesses acquired
Payment for intellectual property
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Cash at end of year

26(a)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Notes To The Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2002
1.

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial report is a general purpose financial
report that has been prepared in accordance with
Accounting Standards, Urgent Issues Group
Consensus Views, other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting
Standards Board and the Corporations Act 2001.
The financial report covers Oakton Ltd as an
individual parent entity and Oakton Ltd and
controlled entities as an economic entity. Oakton Ltd
is a company limited by shares, incorporated and
domiciled in Australia
The financial report has been prepared on an
accruals basis and is based on historical costs and
does not take into account changing money values
or, except where stated, current valuations of noncurrent assets. Cost is based on the fair value of
consideration given in exchange for assets.
The following is a summary of the material
accounting policies adopted by the economic entity
in the preparation of the financial report. The
accounting policies have been consistently applied,
unless otherwise stated.
(a)

Principles of Consolidations

A controlled entity is any entity controlled by Oakton
Ltd. Control exists where Oakton Ltd has the capacity
to dominate the decision-making in relation to the
financial and operating policies of another entity so
that the other entity operates with Oakton Ltd to
achieve the objectives of Oakton Ltd. Details of the
controlled entities are contained in Note 12.
All inter-company balances and transactions
between entities in the economic entity, including
any unrealised profits or losses, have been
eliminated on consolidation.
Where a controlled entity has entered or left the
economic entity during the year its operating results
have been included from the date control was
obtained or until the date control ceased.
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(b)

Income Tax

The economic entity adopts the liability method of
tax-effect accounting whereby the income tax
expense shown is based on the profit from ordinary
activities adjusted for any permanent differences.
Timing differences which arise due to the different
accounting periods in which items of revenue and
expense are included in the determination of
accounting profit and taxable income are brought to
account as either a provision for deferred income tax
or as a future income tax benefit at the rate of
income tax applicable to the period in which the
benefit will be received or the liability will become
payable.
Future income tax benefits are not brought to
account unless realisation of the asset is assured
beyond any reasonable doubt. Future income tax
benefits in relation to tax losses are not brought to
account unless there is virtual certainty of
realisation of the benefit.
The amount of benefits brought to account or which
may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in
income taxation legislation, and the anticipation that
the economic entity will derive sufficient future
assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of
deductibility imposed by the law.
(c)

Property, Plant & Equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is
carried at cost less, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation.
Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis.
The carrying amount of plant and equipment is
reviewed annually by directors to ensure it is not in
excess of the recoverable amount from those assets.
The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of
the expected net cash flows which will be received
from the assets employment and subsequent
disposal. The expected net cash flows have not been

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

discounted to present values in determining
recoverable amounts.
Depreciation
The depreciable amount of all fixed assets are
depreciated on a straight line basis or reducing
balance method over their estimated useful lives to
the entity commencing from the time the asset is
held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are
depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired
period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of
the improvements.

are amortised on a straight line basis over the period
of 20 years. The balances are reviewed annually and
any balance representing future benefits the
realisation of which is considered to be no longer
probable are written off.
Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets are valued in the accounts at
cost of acquisition and are amortised over the period
in which their benefits are expected to be realised,
which is five years.

The depreciation rates used for each class of assets
are:
Class of
Fixed Asset
Leasehold improvements
Plant and equipment
Motor Vehicles
Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings

(d)

Depreciation
Rates

Depreciation
Basis

15-18.5%
up to 40%
22.5%
13.5%

Diminishing Value
Diminishing Value
Diminishing Value
Diminishing Value

Leases

Operating leases
Lease payments for operating leases, where
substantially all the risks and benefits remain with
the lessor, are charged as expenses in the periods in
which they are incurred.
(e)

Investments

Controlled Entities
Investments in controlled entities are carried in the
holding company's financial statements at cost less
amounts written off to recognise any permanent
diminution in value. Dividends are brought to
account in the statement of financial performance
when they are proposed by the controlled entities.
(f)

Intangibles

Goodwill
Goodwill and goodwill on consolidation are initially
recorded at the amount by which the purchase price
for a business or for an ownership interest in a
controlled entity exceeds the fair value attributed to
its net tangible assets at date of acquisition. Both
purchased goodwill and goodwill on consolidation

(g)

Employee Entitlements

Provision is made for the economic entity's liability
for employee entitlements arising from services
rendered by employees to balance date. Employee
entitlements expected to be settled within one year
together with entitlements arising from wages and
salaries and annual leave which will be settled after
one year, have been measured at their nominal
amount. Other employee entitlements payable later
than one year have been measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows to be
made for those entitlements.
Contributions are made by the economic entity to an
employee superannuation fund and are charged as
expenses when incurred.
The company operates an ownership based
remuneration scheme, details of which are provided
in Note 21 to the financial statements. Profits and
losses incurred by employees, being the difference
between the market value and the issue value of the
equity interests acquired are not recorded by the
Company as remuneration paid to employees.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h)

Cash

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows,
cash includes cash on hand and at call deposits with
banks or financial institutions, and net of bank
overdrafts.
(i)

Comparative Figures

Where required by Accounting Standards
comparative figures have been adjusted to conform
with changes in presentation for the current
financial year.
(j)

Revenue

Revenue from the rendering of a service is
recognised upon the delivery of the service to the
customers.
Revenue from the sale of products is recognised
when the product is delivered.
Other revenue is recognised when the right to
receive the revenue has been established.
All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and
services tax (GST).
Interest revenue is recognised on an accruals basis
taking into account the applicable interest rate.
(k)

Providing for dividend
- change in accounting policy

Provision is only made for the amount of any
dividend declared, determined or publicly
recommended by the directors on or before the end
of the financial period but not distributed at balance
date.
The above policy was adopted with effect from 30
June 2002 as the group has elected to adopt AASB
1044 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, released in October 2001 earlier than the
mandated date.
The previous policy was, in addition to providing for
the amount of any dividends declared, determined or
publicly recommended by the directors on or before
the end of the period but not distributed at balance
date, provision was made for dividends to be paid
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out of retained profits at the end of the period
where the dividend was proposed, recommended or
declared between the end of the period and the
completion of the financial report.
This change in accounting policy has no financial
impact on the previously reported retained profits as
at 30 June 2001.
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2.

REVENUE
Economic Entity

Note
Operating activities
- Rendering of services
- Sales of product
- Interest received (a)
- Other revenue

Non-operating activities
- Proceeds on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Total revenue
(a) Interest from:
- Other persons

3.

Parent Entity

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

27,034
2,150
541
2

22,887
670
7

13,653
490
2

12,771
597
7

29,727

23,564

14,145

13,375

-

11

-

-

29,727

23,575

14,145

13,375

541

670

490

597

1

5

1

4

177

162

70

67

356
20
376

316
316

20
20

-

60
67

50
96

60
67

40
96

230

177

126

119

12

19

2

19

-

4

-

-

PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
Profit from ordinary activities before income
tax expense has been determined after:
(a) Expenses:
Borrowing costs
- other persons
Depreciation of non-current assets
- plant and equipment
Amortisation of non-current assets:
- goodwill
- other intangible assets
Total amortisation
Remuneration of the auditors of parent entity for:
- auditing services
- other services *
Rental expense on operating leases
- minimum lease payments
Net loss on disposal of non-current assets
- property, plant and equipment
(b) Revenue and Net Gains:
- property, plant and equipment

* It is Oakton Limited’s policy to employ Pitcher Partners on assignments additional to their annual report duties where Pitcher Partners
expertise and experience with Oakton Limited is important; these assignments are principally tax advice and due diligence reporting on
potential acquisitions.
“Other expenses” in the Statement of Financial Performance comprise those expenses which do not relate to specific business functions.
Certain expenses have been reclassified in the comparative information provided at 30 June 2002 to the current function to which they
relate. There is no impact on the reported result.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Economic Entity

Note

Parent Entity

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

3,028

2,831

1,448

1,945

113
11

107
20

6
5

12

10

23

-

20

3,162

2,981

1,459

1,977

(5)

(1)

(3)

(1)

-

-

-

(12)

3,157

2,980

1,456

1,964

The prima facie income tax payable on profit from
ordinary activities is reconciled to the income tax
expense as follows:
Prima facie tax payable on profit from ordinary activities
before income tax at 30% (2001 - 34%)
Add:
Tax effect of:
- Amortisation of intangible assets
- Other
- Expense arising from restatement of
balances for change in tax rate

Less:
(Over)/under provision for income tax in prior year
Tax loss transferred from controlled entities
Income tax expense attributable to profit
from ordinary activities
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5.

REMUNERATION AND RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Economic Entity

Note

Parent Entity

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

1,213

1,124

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

1,213

1,124

Number

Number

2
1
2
1
1

2
1
3
1
-

(a) Directors' remuneration
Income paid or payable to all directors of each entity in the
economic entity by the entities of which they are directors
Income paid or payable to all directors of the parent entity
by the parent entity and any related parties
Number of parent entity directors whose income from the
parent entity or any related parties was within the
following bands:

$20,000
$30,000
$250,000
$260,000
$270,000
$280,000
$290,000

-

$29,999
$39,999
$259,999
$269,999
$279,999
$289,999
$299,999

The names of directors of the parent entity who have held office during the financial year are:
Steve Vizard
Paul Holyoake
Tim Norton
Neil Wilson
John Quinn
Gordon Hughes
Mark Elliott

(b) Officers’ remuneration
There are no officers of the parent entity or economic entity with remuneration of $100,000 or more.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6.

DIVIDENDS
Economic Entity

Parent Entity

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

4,528

2,514

4,528

2,514

In addition to the above dividends, since year end, the directors
have recommended the payment of a final dividend of 3 cents
per share, fully franked at 30%. The aggregate amount of the
proposed dividend expected to be paid on 28 October 2002,
but not recognised as a liability at year end as a result of the
change in accounting policy for providing for dividends
(note 1(k)) is

2,299

-

2,299

-

Balance of franking account at year-end adjusted for franking
credits arising from payment of provision for income tax and
dividends recognised as receivables, and any credits that
may be prevented from distribution in subsequent years

7,794

5,103

636

1,592

Note
Dividend paid, fully franked at 30%
(2001 - 34%)
DIVIDENDS NOT RECOGNISED AT YEAR END

7.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Earnings used as the numerator in the calculation of basic
and diluted EPS are the same as net profit.
Economic Entity
2002
Number

2001
Number

76,040,208

75,063,813

631,524

1,574,965

Weighted average number of shares used as
the denominator in the calculation of diluted EPS

76,671,732

76,638,778

The number of potential ordinary shares which are
not dilutive and are not included in the calculation
of diluted EPS

3,112,100

2,564,680

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares used as the denominator in the calculation of basic EPS
Weighted average number of potential ordinary shares
included in the denominator in the calculation of diluted EPS

Ordinary shares on issue are classified as ordinary
shares. All options on issue (see Note 21) are classified
as potential ordinary shares.
Details of shares and options issued after balance date
until the date of this report:
Shares issued following exercise of 20c options
expiring 29 May 2010
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8.

CASH ASSETS
Economic Entity

Note
Cash at bank and on hand
Term deposits

9.

NON-CURRENT
Amounts receivable from:
- Wholly owned controlled entities

28 (g)

2001
$‘000

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

4,720
10,030

11,910
-

826
10,030

10,020
-

14,750

11,910

10,856

10,020

5,201
106

4,682
5
29

2,465
81

1,785
5
3

5,307

4,716

2,546

1,793

-

-

-

2,456

-

-

-

2,456

131
-

95
1

106
-

64
-

131

96

106

64

-

-

5,100

5,100

-

-

5,100

5,100

OTHER ASSETS
CURRENT
Prepayments
Borrowing costs

11.

2002
$‘000

RECEIVABLES
CURRENT
Trade debtors
Sundry debtors
Other debtors and security deposits

10.

Parent Entity

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
NON-CURRENT
Shares in controlled entities at cost
Total other financial assets

12
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12.

CONTROLLED ENTITIES
(a) Controlled entities
Country of Incorporation

Parent Entity:
Oakton Ltd

Australia

Subsidiaries of Oakton Ltd :
Oakton Computing (NSW) Pty Ltd
Oakton People Pty Ltd
Oakton Solutions Pty Ltd
Charter Wilson & Associates Pty Ltd
Oakton Computing Pty Ltd

Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia

Percentage Owned (%)
2002

2001

100
100
100
100
100

100
100
100
100
-

(b) Controlled entities acquired
During the year the company purchased 100% of the voting share capital of Oakton Computing Pty Ltd.
Details of the acquisition are:
Oakton Computing Pty Ltd was incorporated on 3 April 2002 however the entity has not operated during the financial period.

13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Economic Entity
2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

Leasehold improvements
At cost
Less accumulated depreciation

51
(4)

33
(1)

51
(4)

33
(1)

Total leasehold improvements

47

32

47

32

Plant and equipment
At cost
Less accumulated depreciation

914
(437)

868
(418)

269
(146)

264
(171)

477

450

123

93

119
(60)

119
(43)

119
(60)

119
(43)

59

76

59

76

83
(32)

71
(23)

38
(23)

37
(21)

51

48

15

16

Total plant and equipment

587

574

197

185

Total property, plant and equipment

634

606

244

217

Note

Motor vehicles
At cost
Less accumulated depreciation

Furniture, fixtures and fittings
At cost
Less accumulated depreciation

52
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13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
(a) Movements in Carrying Amounts
Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and
the end of the year.
Plant & equipment
Economic
Parent
Entity
Entity
$‘000
$‘000

Motor vehicles
Economic
Parent
Entity
Entity
$‘000
$‘000

2002
Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation expense

450
185
(14)
(144)

93
75
(2)
(43)

76
(17)

76
(17)

Carrying amount at end of year

477

123

59

59

Furniture, fixtures & fittings
Leasehold property improvements
Economic
Parent
Economic
Parent
Entity
Entity
Entity
Entity
$‘000
$‘000
$‘000
$‘000

14.

2002
Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation expense

48
15
(12)

16
4
(5)

32
18
(3)

32
18
(3)

Carrying amount at the end of the year

51

15

47

47

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Economic Entity

Note
Goodwill at cost
Less accumulated amortisation

Goodwill on consolidation at cost
Less accumulated amortisation

Other intangibles at cost
Less accumulated amortisation

15.

Parent Entity

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

1,633
(163)

1,633
(66)

-

-

1,470

1,567

-

-

5,088
(508)

5,088
(250)

-

-

4,580

4,838

-

-

100
(20)

100
-

100
(20)

100
-

80

100

80

100

6,130

6,505

80

100

366

297

222

147

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
The future income tax benefits comprise:
Timing differences
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16.

PAYABLES
Economic Entity

Note
CURRENT
Unsecured liabilities
Trade creditors
Amount owing under contract of sale
GST payable
Sundry creditors and accruals

NON-CURRENT
Unsecured liabilities
Amount owing under contract of sale

17.

18.

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

207
1,000
607
1,596

342
1,293
583
659

21
1,000
272
392

65
1,000
286
279

3,410

2,877

1,685

1,630

-

1,000

-

1,000

INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Secured liabilities
Hire purchase liability

23(a)

13

17

13

17

NON-CURRENT
Secured liabilities
Hire purchase liability

23(a)

-

13

-

13

1,078

1,360

252

351

19(a)

973

806

513

437

19(a)

71

-

71

-

1,044

806

584

437

Number

Number

Number

Number

151

156

76

81

TAX LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Income tax

19.

Parent Entity

PROVISIONS
CURRENT
Employee entitlements
NON-CURRENT
Employee entitlements
(a) Aggregate employee entitlements liability

(b) Employees at year end
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20.

OTHER LIABILITIES
Economic Entity

Note
CURRENT
Customer deposits

21.

Parent Entity

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

-

21

-

-

-

21

-

-

16,535

15,205

16,535

15,205

Number

Number

Number

Number

73,951,063
1,650,000

73,951,063
-

73,951,063
1,650,000

73,951,063
-

769,230

-

769,230

-

76,370,293

73,951,063

76,370,293

73,951,063

CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
Paid up Capital
76,370,293 (2001: 73,951,063) ordinary shares
fully paid

Movements in number of shares
Balance at beginning of year
Options exercised
Shares issued under contract to acquire
Charter Wilson & Associates Pty Ltd

26(d)

Balance at end of year

Movements in ordinary share capital

$’000s

Balance at beginning of year
Options exercised
Shares issued under contract to acquire
Charter Wilson & Associates Pty Ltd

$’000s

$’000s

$’000s

15,205
330

15,222
-

15,205
330

15,222
-

1,000

-

1,000

-

Costs of capital raising

-

(17)

-

(17)

Balance at end of year

16,535

15,205

16,535

15,205

26(d)

Options
Options issued during the financial year (other than those under the Employee Option Plan) were issued pursuant to a contract to acquire
Charter Wilson and Associates Pty Ltd and were based on the performance of that entity in 2001.
Closing
30/06/2002

Issue
Date

Expiry
Date

Exercise
Price ($)

Opening
30/06/2001

Issued
Number

Exercised

29/05/2000
10/10/2001
10/10/2001

29/05/2005
12/10/2003
12/10/2003

0.20
0.20
0.20

1,250,000
-

750,000
750,000

(900,000)
(750,000)
-

-

350,000
750,000

Total:

1,250,000

1,500,000

(1,650,000)

-

1,100,000

Lapsed
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21.

CONTRIBUTED EQUITY (continued)
Employee Option Plan
The Oakton Limited Employee Option Plan was established to encourage greater interest on the part of employees in the performance and
success of the group.
All employees, including directors, may be issued options at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee. The options will be issued for
$nil consideration and the strike price and the exercise period will be set by the Remuneration Committee. The options issued, if converted to
shares and the shares issued pursuant to such options during the 5 previous years, cannot exceed 5% of share capital.
Options are, except in Special Circumstances, personal to the employee. The options are not listed on the ASX.
Options issued during the year are detailed below. No options issued under the Employee Option Plan were exercised during the year.

Movements in options issued under the Employee Option Plan

56

Closing
30/06/2002

Issue
Date

Expiry
Date

Exercise
Price ($)

Opening
30/06/2001

Issued
Number

Lapsed

29/05/2000
13/07/2000
01/09/2000
01/09/2000
01/09/2000
01/09/2000
01/09/2000
01/09/2000
01/09/2000
01/09/2000
01/11/2000
01/11/2000
01/12/2000
01/01/2001
01/02/2001
01/02/2001
01/02/2001
01/02/2001
01/02/2001
01/02/2001
01/04/2001
01/04/2001
01/04/2001
01/04/2001
01/04/2001
01/04/2001
01/04/2001
01/10/2001
01/10/2001
01/08/2001
01/07/2001
01/07/2001
01/07/2001
10/10/2001

29/05/2005
13/07/2005
01/09/2005
01/09/2005
01/09/2005
01/09/2005
01/09/2005
01/09/2005
01/09/2005
01/09/2005
01/11/2005
01/11/2005
01/09/2005
01/01/2006
01/02/2006
01/02/2006
01/02/2006
01/02/2006
01/02/2006
01/02/2006
01/04/2006
01/04/2006
01/04/2006
01/04/2006
01/04/2006
01/04/2006
01/04/2006
01/10/2006
01/10/2006
01/08/2006
01/07/2006
01/07/2006
01/07/2006
12/10/2006

1.00
1.00
1.30
1.00
1.02
1.07
1.11
1.15
1.25
1.31
1.20
1.02
1.26
1.25
1.25
1.02
1.22
1.13
1.05
1.07
1.15
1.20
1.22
1.18
1.16
1.13
1.00
0.87
0.91
0.84
0.91
1.00
0.95
1.00

1,517,000
450,000
35,000
5,000
10,000
15,000
5,000
10,000
15,000
20,000
82,000
400,000
30,000
30,000
5,000
40,000
15,000
5,000
5,000
10,000
5,000
25,000
10,000
10,000
5,000
5,000
-

_
54,000
5,000
10,000
15,000
20,000
15,000
10,000
100,000

(105,000)
(5,000)
(5,000)
(10,000)
(9,000)
(10,000)
(15,000)
(15,000)
(5,000)
(5,000)
(5,000)
(5,000)
(5,000)
-

1,412,000
450,000
35,000
5,000
15,000
5,000
10,000
15,000
10,000
73,000
390,000
15,000
15,000
40,000
10,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
20,000
10,000
10,000
5,000
5,000
54,000
5,000
10,000
10,000
20,000
15,000
10,000
100,000

Total:

2,764,000

229,000

(199,000)

2,794,000
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22.

RETAINED PROFITS
Economic Entity

Note

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

6

2,831
6,935
(4,528)

5,345
(2,514)

1,244
3,369
(4,528)

3,758
(2,514)

5,238

2,831

85

1,244

Payable
- not later than one year
- later than one year and not later than five years
Minimum hire purchase payments
Less future finance charges

13
13
-

20
13
33
(3)

13
13
-

20
13
33
(3)

Total Hire Purchase Liability

13

30

13

30

Represented by:
Current liability
Non-current liability

13
-

17
13

13
-

17
13

13

30

13

30

239
809
274

222
740
581

129
725
274

124
546
581

1,322

1,543

1,128

1,251

Retained profits at the beginning of the financial year
Net profit attributable to members of the entity
Dividends provided for or paid
Retained profits at reporting date

23.

Parent Entity

CAPITAL AND LEASING
COMMITMENTS
(a) Hire Purchasing Commitments

(b) Operating Lease Commitments
Non-cancellable operating leases contracted
for but not capitalised in the accounts:
Payable
- not later than one year
- later than one year and not later than five years
- later than five years

The Victorian property lease is a non-cancellable lease with a ten year term, with rent payable monthly in advance. Contingent rental
provisions within the lease require the minimum lease payments shall increase by 4% per annum with market reviews in 2005 and 2010 if
the option to renew is exercised. An option exists to renew the lease at the end of the ten year term for an additional term of five years. The
lessors are Davkat Pty Ltd and Tarbate Pty Ltd, director related entities (refer 28(e)).
The property lease for Oakton Computing (NSW) Pty Ltd is a three year lease with rent indexed with the CPI which commenced on 1 January
2001.
The property lease for Charter Wilson and Associates Pty Ltd is a five year lease which commenced on 1 July 1999 with an option for a
further five years.
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24.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Estimates of the maximum amounts of contingent liabilities that may become payable:

(a) Acquisition of Frontline Consulting (now Oakton Solutions Pty Ltd)
The economic entity may have additional liabilities on the purchase price. Additional amounts are contingent on the growth in EBIT of
Oakton Solutions Pty Ltd being achieved.
Economic Entity

Parent Entity

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

The maximum amount due in greater
than one year

293

293

-

-

The maximum amount due in greater
than two year

-

293

-

-

293

586

-

-

13

13

-

-

2002
Consulting

2002
Products

2002
Total

2001
Consulting

$‘000

$‘000

$‘000

$’000

Revenue to external clients

27,577

2,150

29,727

23,575

Segment result

8,587

1,505

10,092

8,325

Segment assets

27,051

267

27,318

24,130

Segment liabilities

4,900

645

5,545

6,094

Acquisitions of non current segment assets

218

-

218

246

553

-

553

478

12

-

12

19

Note

b) Bank guarantee and indemnity
in relation to the premises
at Kent Street, Sydney
Maximum amount which the bank may call

25.

SEGMENT REPORTING
Primary Segment - Business
The business operates in two business segments in the information technology industry:
(a) consulting services; and
(b) sales of specialised products and tools.

Total amount of depreciation and amortisation of segment assets
Segment non cash expenses

Secondary segment - Geographical
The consulting services are provided predominantly to clients within Australia.
The product sales were made entirely to customers in South Africa.

Comparative information
In the prior financial year, the economic entity operated entirely in one business segment (consulting), predominantly in Australia.
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26.

CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Economic Entity

Parent Entity

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

4,720
10,030

11,910
-

826
10,030

10,020
-

14,750

11,910

10,856

10,020

6,935

5,345

3,369

3,758

Non-cash flows in profit from ordinary activities
Amortisation
Depreciation

376
177

316
162

20
70

67

Items classified as Financing/Investing activities
Interest paid
Net loss on sale of fixed assets
GST on Fixed Asset additions

1
12
22

5
15
24

1
2
10

4
19
10

(591)
(35)

(2,496)
(72)

(753)
(43)

(513)
(45)

806
(282)
(69)
238

272
607
(154)
655

56
(99)
(75)
146

176
(142)
(83)
230

7,590

4,679

2,704

3,481

Note

(a) Reconciliation of Cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the
statements of cash flows is reconciled to the related items
in the statement of financial position as follows:
Cash on at bank and on hand
Term deposit
8

(b) Reconciliation of Cash Flow from
operations with profit from ordinary activities
Profit from ordinary activities after Income Tax

Changes in assets and liabilities,
net of effects of purchase of subsidiaries
(Increase)/decrease in receivables
(Increase)/decrease in other assets
Increase/(decrease) in creditors, accruals
and other liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in income tax payable
(Increase)/decrease in deferred taxes
Increase/(decrease) in provisions
Net Cash provided by operations
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26.

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)
Economic Entity
2002
$‘000

2001
$‘000

-

5,000
89

-

5,089

Amount due under contract of sale

-

(2,000)

Cash held at acquisition

-

3,089
(21)

Cash outflow/inflow

-

3,068

Assets and liabilities held at acquisition date:
Cash
Receivables
Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment
Creditors and accruals
Income tax liabilities
Employee Entitlements
Other provisions

-

21
611
62
337
(279)
(271)
(150)
(331)

Net assets at acquisition
Goodwill on consolidation

-

5,089

-

5,089

Note

(c) Acquisition of entities
During the prior year, Oakton Ltd acquired 100%
of the share capital in Charter Wilson and Associates
Pty Ltd. Details of this transaction are:
Contract price
Transaction costs

During the year, Oakton Ltd acquired 100% of the share capital of Oakton Computing Pty Ltd for $975. This company was acquired on the
day it was incorporated.
During the prior year, Oakton Ltd also acquired 100% of the share capital of Oakton Solutions Pty Ltd for $2.

(d) Non-cash financing and investing activities.
During the prior financial year, the company acquired 100% of the shares in Charter Wilson and Associates Pty Ltd. The balance of the
purchase price is due on the first and second anniversaries of the settlement of the transaction. During the year, 769,230 shares, totalling $1
million were issued in satisfaction of the first instalment due under the contract of sale (refer also note 21 and 28(k)).

(e) Credit standby and loan facilities
The economic entity does not have any standby credit arrangements or loan facilities.
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27.

(c) Material contracts

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT
TO REPORTING DATE
Subsequent to balance date, Oakton Limited has
entered a contract to acquire certain business assets
of the Australian operations of Tier Technologies Inc
(an information technology consulting and delivery
services provider). The completion of the contract is
subject to certain conditions precedent in the
contract which have not been fulfilled at the date of
this report. These conditions may also impact the
acquisition price.

28.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) Directors
The names of each person holding the position of
Director of the company during the year and details
of Director's remuneration, superannuation and
retirement payments are set out in Note 5.
(b) Directors’ Interests
Director's holding of shares
Directors and director-related entities hold directly,
indirectly or beneficially as at the reporting date, the
following equity interests in the economic entity:

Ordinary Shares
Options

2002

2001

49,271,467
1,130,000

58,197,863
1,250,000

See also note (d) Options.
Transactions of directors and director related entities
concerning shares and share options
The aggregate number
of shares and share
options transactions
in the year
Shares
Options

acquired
disposed
granted
exercised

2002

2,284,308
11,210,704
1,460,000
1,580,000

Apart from the details disclosed in this note, no
Director has entered into a material contract with
the Company or the economic entity since the end
of the previous financial year.
(d) Options
Directors, with the consent of shareholders, may also
participate in the Employee Option Plan. Neil Wilson,
under his employment contract, has received
100,000 employee options in October 2001 and is
eligible to receive a further 100,000 options on
October 2002, subject to certain conditions.
Additionally he has received 1,360,000 options (of
which half have been exercised) based on the
performance of Charter Wilson and Associates Pty
Ltd in 2001. The bonus options may be exercised at
20 cents each and expire in October 2003.
(e) Other transactions with the company
The company occupied premises which are owned by
Davkat Holdings Pty Ltd, and Tarbate Pty Ltd,
director related entities. The company entered into a
ten year lease agreement from 1 March 2000 with
rental charged at $117,400 p.a. based on commercial
rental rates. This is subject to an annual increase of
4% p.a. except in years when there is a market rent
review. Rent cannot fall at the market rent reviews.
The rent paid for the twelve month period to 30
June 2002 totalled $126,992 (2001 - $119,400).
The company paid $38,255 (2001 - $32,933) during
the year to Computershare Ltd for share registry
services, a company of which Mark Elliott was an
officer. The services provided are on normal
commercial terms and conditions.

2001
55,000
58,200
Nil
Nil
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28.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(f) Loans to directors and
director-related entities
During the year, the economic entity had not
advanced any amounts to directors or director
related entities
(g) Loans
Loans between group entities are repayable at call
and are interest free. There is no intention to call any
loan within the next 12 months.
(h) Balances
The aggregate amount receivable from wholly owned
controlled entities by the Company at balance date.
Parent Entity
2002
$

2001
$
-

2,456,147

(i) Other Transactions
Individual entities within the economic entity employ
staff who may assist on projects in other entities.
These staff are on charged at standard charge out
rates.
(j) Administration fee
The company may charge controlled entities an
administration fee. The fee is calculated to recoup
the cost of shared services.
(k) Material contracts with the Company
Neil Wilson has an interest in an agreement dated 10
October 2000 in which Adina Tower Pty Ltd, (the
company which held 90 per cent of the issued
capital of Charter Wilson and Associates Pty Ltd) is
entitled to 90 per cent of the amount owing to
satisfy the balance of the purchase price, being
$1,000,000 (2001 - $2 million). The amount will be
satisfied by the issue of shares in Oakton Ltd. The
shares will be issued in October 2002.
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29.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Terms, conditions and accounting policies
Financial Instrument

Note

Accounting Policy

Terms & Conditions

1) Financial assets
Cash

8

Cash is carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cash balances in bank accounts receive
the bank benchmark interest rate.

Term deposits

8

Deposits at call are carried at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.

Term deposits are lodged for periods from 30 to 91 days
but can be recalled at 24 hours notice.

Trade receivable

9

Trade receivables are carried at nominal
amounts due.

Trade receivables are ordinarily settled
within 30 day terms.

Sundry debtors

9

Sundry receivables are carried at
nominal amounts due.

Sundry receivables are ordinarily
settled within 30 days.

Loan – related
parties

9

Loans to related parties are carried
at nominal amounts due.

No interest charged on loans.

Trade creditors and
accruals

16

Recognised for amounts to be
settled in the future, whether
or not billed to the company.

Accrued charges are ordinarily
settled within 30 to 60 days.

Provision for
employee
entitlements

19

Carried at nominal amounts due.

Hire purchase

17

Recognised for amounts under contract
and to be settled in the future.

2) Financial liabilities

Payments are made monthly with
an effective interest rate of 9.77%.

(b) Interest Rate Risks
The consolidated entities exposure to interest rate risk as at 30 June 2002 was:
• Term deposits of $10.030 million (2001 - $nil) which had an average interest rate of 4.7% (2001 - n/a).

• Hire purchase contract of $12,551 (2001 - $29,915) fixed at 9.77% over its term.
All other financial assets and liabilities are not exposed to interest rate risk.

(c) Credit risk
Exposure to credit risk
The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk at balance date, in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as indicated in the balance sheet.

Concentrations of credit risk
The company minimises concentrations of credit risk in relation to trade receivables by undertaking transactions with the following
conditions:
- payment terms are generally 30 days
- a risk assessment process is used for all clients
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29.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Net fair values
Determination of Net Fair Value
Financial assets
Carrying values as noted in the balance sheet
approximate net fair value.
Financial liabilities
Carrying values as noted in the balance sheet
approximate net fair value.
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Directors’ Declaration
The directors of Oakton Limited declare that:
1.

The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 41 to 64 are in accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001
(a) comply with the Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and
(b) give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 2002 and of the
performance for the year ended on that date of the company and economic entity.

2.

In the directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able
to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Dated at Melbourne on 22 August 2002.

PAUL HOLYOAKE
Managing Director

TIM NORTON
Executive Director
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Scope
We have audited the financial report of Oakton Ltd for the financial year ended 30 June 2002 as set on on pages 41 to
65. The financial report includes the consolidated financial statements of the consolidated entity comprising the
company and the entities it controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the financial year. The company's
directors are responsible for the financial report. We have conducted an independent audit of this financial report in
order to express an opinion on it to the members of the company.
Our audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards to provide reasonable assurance
whether the financial report is free of material misstatement. Our procedures included examination, on a test basis, of
evidence supporting the amounts and other disclosures in the financial report, and the evaluation of accounting
policies and significant accounting estimates. These procedures have been undertaken to form an opinion whether, in
all material respects, the financial report is presented fairly in accordance with Accounting Standards and other
mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia and the Corporations Act 2001 so as to present a view
which is consistent with our understanding of the company's and consolidated entity's financial position, and
performance as represented by the results of their operations and their cash flows.
The audit opinion expressed in this report has been formed on the above basis.

Audit Opinion
In our opinion, the financial report of Oakton Limited is in accordance with:
(a)

(b)

the Corporations Act 2001, including
(i)

giving a true and fair view of the company’s and the consolidated entity’s
financial position as at 30 June 2002 and of their performance for the year ended
on that date; and

(ii)

complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corporation Regulations 2001; and

other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia.

PITCHER PARTNERS

S SCHONBERG
Partner
Melbourne
23 August 2002
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Shareholding Information
AS AT 20 AUGUST 2002
In accordance with Section 3C of the Australian
Stock Exchange Limited Listing rules, the Directors
provide the following shareholding information
which was applicable as at 20 August 2002.

(d) Twenty Largest Shareholders

SHAREHOLDING ANALYSIS

Name

The names of the twenty largest shareholders are:

(a) Distribution of Shareholding
Analysis of numbers of shareholders by size of
shareholdings:
Number of
Size of Shareholding

Shareholders

%

1 - 1,000

142

0.14

1,001 - 5,000

611

2.68

5,001 - 10,000

320

3.61

10,001 - 100,000

287

9.87

100,001 and over

20

83.70

1,380

100.00

Total:

(b) Less Than Marketable Parcels
25 shareholders hold less than a marketable parcel
of shares, being a market value of less than $500.

Percentage of
Number of issued shares
shares held
%

Oakdon Holdings Pty Ltd
25,869,059
Mr Tim Norton
9,941,000
RBC Global Services Australia
Nominees Pty Ltd <PIPOOLED A/C> 7,626,315
Mr Paul Holyoake
5,003,941
Mr John Quinn
4,437,063
RBC Global Services Australia
Nominees Pty Ltd <PIIC A/C.
1,804,050
Equity Trustees Ltd
1,618,213
Mr Steve Vizard
1,400,000
Westpac Custodian Nominees Ltd
1,145,524
National Nominees Limited
1,100,000
JP Morgan Nominees Australia Ltd 1,090,045
Performing Arts Services Nominees
Pty Ltd
701,800
Adina Tower Pty Ltd
692,308
Mr Neil Wilson
680,000
HSCBC Custody Nominees (Aust) Ltd 207,476
Lavender Craft Pty Ltd
198,681
Weresyd Pty Ltd
165,000
Snooze City Pty Ltd
151,000
Invia Custodian Pty Ltd
150,000
Mr M and Mrs S Michelmore
150,000
Total:

64,131,475

33.76
12.97
9.95
6.53
5.79
2.35
2.11
1.82
1.50
1.44
1.42
0.92
0.90
0.89
0.27
0.26
0.22
0.20
0.20
0.20
83.70%

(c) Substantial Shareholders
The following are registered by the Company as
substantial shareholders, having declared a relevant
interest in the number of voting shares shown
adjacent as at the date of giving the notice.

The twenty members holding the largest number of
shares together held a total of 83.7% of the issued
capital.

Shareholder

(e) Issued Capital

Number Interest %

Oakton Ltd and Associates
(Directors)

48,371,467

64.09

Perpetual Trustees Australia
Limited

10,395,865

13.77

The fully paid issued capital of the company
consisted of 76,620,293 shares held by 1,380
shareholders. Each share entitles the holder to one
vote.
(f) On-Market Buy-Back
There is no current on-market buy-back.
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Other Information for Shareholders
In accordance with Section 3C of the Australian
Stock Exchange Limited Listing rules, the Directors
provide the following information not elsewhere
disclosed in this report.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS
The Board of Directors aims to ensure that
shareholders are informed of all major developments
affecting the Company's state of affairs. Information
is communicated to shareholders as follows:
• The annual report is distributed to all

shareholders (unless a shareholder has specifically
requested not to receive the document). A copy of
the full annual report is available free of charge,
upon request, from the Company. The Board
ensures that the annual report includes relevant
information about the operation of the Company
during the year, changes in the state of affairs of
the Company and details of future developments,
in addition to the other disclosures required by
the Corporations Law;
• The half-year report contains summarised

financial information and a review of the
operations of the Company during the period. The
half-year financial report is prepared in
accordance with the requirements of Accounting
Standards and the Corporations Law, and is
lodged with the Australian Securities and
Investments Commission and the Australian Stock
Exchange. A brief summary of half-yearly results
are distributed to shareholders; and
• The Company's internet website at

www.oakton.com.au is regularly updated and
provides details of recent material
announcements by the Company to the stock
exchange, annual and half-yearly reports, and
general information on the Company and its
business.
The Board encourages full participation of
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to
ensure a high level of accountability and
identification with the Company's strategy and goals.
Important issues are presented to the shareholders
as single resolutions.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The 2002 Annual General Meeting of Oakton Limited
will be held in the
ASX Theatrette,
Australian Stock Exchange,
Level 1, 530 Collins Street,
Melbourne, Victoria
at 10.00 a.m. on Thursday,
24 October 2002.
Formal notice of the meeting is enclosed with this
report.

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
Oakton Limited shares are listed on the Australian
Stock Exchange (ASX:OKN). The home exchange is
Melbourne.
All shares are recorded on the principal share register
of Oakton Limited, held by Computershare Investor
Services Pty Ltd at the following street address:
Level 12
565 Bourke Street
Melbourne VIC 3000

SHARE REGISTRY ENQUIRIES
Shareholders who wish to approach the Company on
any matter related to their shareholding should
contact the Computershare Investor Centre in
Melbourne:
The Registrar
Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd
GPO Box 2975EE
Melbourne Victoria 3001
Australia
Telephone: +61 3 9611 5711 or 1300 855 080
Facsimile: +61 3 9611 5710
Electronic mail:
melbourne.services@computershare.com.au
Website:
www-au.computershare.com/au/investor/

OTHER INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

INTERNET ACCESS TO INFORMATION

STATEMENT UNDER LISTING RULE 4.10.19

Oakton maintains a comprehensive Investor
Relations section on its website at
www.oakton.com.au/investors/.

At the date of listing, 2 June 2002, the economic
entity held more than 50% of its total assets in the
form of cash or assets readily convertible to cash.

Our website is the best place to find the latest
investor information about Oakton and its highvalue services.

In accordance with listing rule 4.10.19, the Company
advises that between 1 July 2001 and 30 June 2002,
cash was used in accordance with the business
objectives of the company. As noted in the
prospectus dated 12 April 2000, the key purposes of
the capital raising undertaken are to support:

You can also access comprehensive information
about your securityholdings either via the link on our
website, or direct to the Computershare Investor
Centre at
www-au.computershare.com/au/investor/.
By registering with Computershare’s free Investor
Centre service you can enjoy direct access to a range
of functions to manage your personal investment
details. You can create and manage your own
portfolio of investments, check your securityholding
details, display the current value of your holdings
and amend your details online.

• the development of the Internet enabled e@gle.i

and Oakton proprietary investigation
management system products;
• prospective strategic acquisitions and alliances in

the e-business area;
• staff recruitment and training; and
• sales and marketing to underpin Oakton’s growth

and expansion strategies.

Changes to your shareholder details, such as a
change of name or address, or notification of your
tax file number or direct credit of dividend advice
can be made by printing out the forms you need,
filling them in and sending the changes back to the
Computershare Investor Centre.

www.oakton.com.au
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Three Year
June
2000

June
2001

June
2002

11,996

23,575

29,727

6,303

8,803

10,645

65

478

553

Net Profit from ordinary activities Before Income Tax

6,238

8,325

10,092

Income Tax Expense

(2,181)

(2,980)

(3,157)

Net Profit from ordinary activities After Tax (NPAT)

4,057

5,345

6,935

Net Operating Cash Flow

3,332

4,679

7,590

Total Assets

18,757

24,130

27,318

Total Shareholders’ Equity

15,222

18,036

21,773

88

156

151

73,951,063

73,951,063

76,370,293

20

15

20

**

3.4

6.0

EBITDA to Total Revenue (%)

52.5

37.3

35.8

NPAT to Total Revenue (%)

33.8

22.7

23.3

Revenue per Employee ($‘000)

136

151

197

Operating Results ($’000)
Total Revenue
Earnings Before Income Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA)
Depreciation and Amortisation

Financial Position ($’000)

Staff Numbers
Contributed Equity Information
Number of Shares on Issue at year end
Net Tangible Asset Backing per share (cents)
Dividends Paid (cents per share)
Performance Indicators

*

Summary since 2000, the year of Oakton’s listing on the ASX

** Data is not comparable as dividends were paid to founder shares before the listing of the company
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Summary*
TOTAL REVENUE
($m)
29.7

26% to $29.7m

23.6

Organic growth built on the successful

12.0

00

integration of past acquisitions
01

02

NET PROFIT (before tax)
($m)
10.1

21% to $10.1m

8.3
6.2

Profit growth reflects the benefits of past
acquisitions and an e@gle.i product sale
00

01

02

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
($m)
21.8

21% to $21.8m

18.0
15.2

Shareholders’ equity in the company
reflects our growth strategy
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REVENUE PER EMPLOYEE
($’000)
197
136

30% to $197,000
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Healthy increase as the result of an
e@gle.i sale shows our product division
strategy is working
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ANNUAL REPORT 2002
In this Annual Report 2002, the expressions ‘Oakton’ and ‘Oakton group’ refer to the legal entity Oakton Limited and its
controlled entities as a whole.
The financial year is for the year ended 30 June 2002. References in this report to a ‘year’, ‘FY02’ or ‘2001/2002 fiscal
year’ are to the financial year ended 30 June 2002 unless otherwise stated. All figures are expressed in Australian
currency unless otherwise stated.

CREDITS
This Annual Report 2002 was designed and produced in-house at Oakton by Lloyd Borrett, André Czausov and Alison
King with the generous assistance of many other staff members and clients.
Tools: QuarkXPress, Adobe Photoshop, Adobe Illustrator, Adobe Acrobat and Blender Publisher.
Printing: Harvey Printing

© Oakton Limited 2002. ABN 50 007 028 711
All rights reserved.
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Corporate Directory ›
OAKTON GROUP COMPANIES

INTERNET

Oakton Limited
ABN 50 007 028 711

Websites:

Oakton Computing Pty Ltd
ABN 31 100 103 268

www.oakton.com.au
www.oaktonpeople.com.au
www.charterwilson.com.au

Email:

enquiry@oakton.com.au

Oakton Computing (NSW) Pty Ltd
ABN 51 084 674 171

OAKTON OFFICES

AUDITORS

Oakton Limited Head Office
262 Burwood Road
Hawthorn VIC 3122
Telephone: +61 3 9818 4111
Facsimile: +61 3 9818 1511

Pitcher Partners
Level 6 • 161 Collins Street
Melbourne VIC 3000
www.pitcher.com.au

Oakton Solutions Pty Ltd
ABN 31 093 698 750
Oakton People Pty Ltd
ABN 80 077 571 843
Charter Wilson & Associates Pty Ltd
ABN 33 069 247 267

DIRECTORS
Steve Vizard
Paul Holyoake
Tim Norton
Neil Wilson
John Quinn
Gordon Hughes

Chairman
Managing Director
Executive Director
Executive Director
Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

NSW Office
Level 7 • 362 Kent Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Telephone: +61 2 9299 3077
Facsimile: +61 2 9299 7233
Charter Wilson Head Office
Level 10 • 45 William Street
Melbourne VIC 3000
Telephone: +61 3 9614 8696
Facsimile: +61 3 9614 8697

COMPANY SECRETARY
Jane Pearce

REGISTERED OFFICE
Pitcher Partners
Level 6 • 161 Collins Street
Melbourne VIC 3000

Oakton Limited shares are listed
on the Australian Stock
Exchange, ticker code OKN. The
home exchange is in Melbourne.

SOLICITORS
Minter Ellison
Level 23 • Rialto South Tower
525 Collins Street
Melbourne VIC 3000
www.minters.com.au

BANKERS
ANZ Banking Group Limited
287 Bridge Road
Richmond VIC 3122
www.anz.com.au

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES
The Registrar
Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd
GPO Box 2975EE
Melbourne VIC 3001
Telephone: +61 3 9615 5970
Facsimile: +61 3 9611 5710
Email:
melbourne.services@computershare.com.au
Website: www.computershare.com

www.oakton.com.au

